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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Medi Assist Healthcare
Services Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated financial statements”),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and
based on consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other
financial information of subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133
of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the Group
as at March 31, 2022, of consolidated profit, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group, its associate and jointly controlled entities in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in India in terms
of the Code of Ethics issued by Institute of Chartered Accountant of India (“ICAI"), and the relevant
provisions of the Act and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Director's report but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated
cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities
are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing (“SAs™) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements,

We give in "Annexure A" a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Other Matters

The Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the vear ended March 31, 2021,
were adopted by the Board of Directors, on which the previous auditor issued a disclaimer of opinion
dated November 23, 2021.

Our opinion is not medified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

d. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.
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b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

c. The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flow
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained
for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and our audit report on the statutory audit of its subsidiary company incorporated
in India, none of the directors of the Group companies, are disqualified as on March 31, 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B",

2. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

L The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
the consolidated financial position of the Group- Refer Note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements,

ii. The Group has long-term contracts as on March 31, 2022, for which there were no
material foreseeable losses. The Group did not have any derivative contracts as on
March 31, 2022.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies incorporated in India.

iv. On the basis of our verification, we report that:

i)  The final dividend paid by the Holding Company during the year in respect of the
same declared for the previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the
Companies Act 2013 to the extent it applies to payment of dividend.

ii} The Board of Directors of the Holding Company has proposed final dividend for the
year which is subject to the approval of their respective members at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. The dividend declared is in accordance with section 123 of
the Act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend. (Refer Note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements)
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2. Asrequired by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, in our opinion, to the best of
our knowledge and according to information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Group to its directors is within the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule ¥ to the Act.

3. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the CARO reports
issued by us for the Company and its subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that
there are no Qualifications/adverse remarks.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 105047W

Pradéep Mysore Suresh
Partner

Membership Mo. 216181
UDIN: 22216181AUHLDJ4715

Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 23, 2022
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MEDI ASSIST HEALTHCARE SERVICES LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group
and its associates and jointly controlled entities to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group and its associates and jointly controlled entities to cease to
continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group and its associates and jointly controlled
entities to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of
such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

For M 5 K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 105047W

Prad Mysore Suresh
Partner

Membership No. 216181
UDIN: 22216181AUHLDJ4715

Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 23, 2022
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MEDI ASSIST HEALTHCARE SERVICES LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited
on the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the
year ended March 31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary companies which are incorporated in India, as of that date.

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies which are incorporated in India, have, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control with reference to consolidated financial
statements criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI").

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company and its subsidiary companies which are
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established by the
respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Holding company and its subsidiary companies which are
incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
MNote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by
the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
inancial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating
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effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Holding company and its subsidiary companies which are
incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to consclidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the consclidated financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of intermal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference
to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For MS K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regisgration No. 105047W

Pradeep Mysore Suresh
Partner

Membership No. 216181
UDIN: 22216181AUHLDJ4715

Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 23, 2022
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Medl Assist Healthcare Services Limbled
Consolidated Balance Sheed as at 31 March 2022

(Al ampamis gre in Indian Rupees in milllons, unless oterwize stared)

As at As at
R Notes 31 March 1022 31 March 2021
ASSETS
Mon-current assets
Property, plart and equipment 4 212.49 200,04
Right-of-use assels $ia) 200.58 26847
Gioadwill [} 409 B0 405,50
Other minngib be asscts ) 163.81 22347
Intangible assets under development 7 64,61 6.54
Financinl asssts 8
Investments &ia) 69.39 74.72
Oither financial assets Bib) 34,05 42599
Non-Current tax assets (net) 9 492.47 303.12
Deferred tax assets (ned) 10 495,20 1642
Other non-currend asseis 11 6.56 B4
Total non-current sssets 1,749.28 1,735.83
Currenl assels
Firancial assets 12
Investments 12 {a} 194504 1,050.89
Trade receivables 12 (b 1.187.70 1,210.80
Cash and cash equivalents 12 () 145,95 633,89
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalens 12 (d}y 479,38 513.45
Other financial asses 12 () 149,11 192.56
Other current assets 13 26585 123,16
Total current assets _4,273.04 3,704,785
Non-cusrent asiets held for sale 44 - 1244
Total Assets GEI.“] 5453.00
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share eapital 14 34430 037
Chher equity 15 3,026.99 2,903.56
Total equity attributable to owners of the Compaay iamae 2,903.53
Mon-controlling inlerests 21.57 11.57
Total eqisity 3,392.96 2,915.50
LIABILITIES
MNon-current Habillties
Finamcial liahilities
Lense liahilites 5 (h) 175.20 256,74
Provisions 16 11221 B5.56
Total mos-current liabilithes 18741 131
Current labilitles
Financial liahilies
Lease labilities 5(b) 99,58 96,24
Trade payables 17 {a)
totsl cutinnding dues of micro enierprisss and small enerprises 3232 L
total eutstanding dues 1o creditors ciher than micro enterprises and snall enterprises 15788 03,77
Diber financinl labilities 17 (b) w1.55 173.72
Contract liabilities 1,536.96 1.221.96
Orther current Linbilizes 18 29742 124,80
Provisions 19 66,22 210
Current tax lisbilities {met) 20 - 81.50
Tatal current labilitics 234203 L185.20
Total lHabilities 242944 1,527.52
Total Equity and Liabilities 6022.30 5,453.02

The notes refermed to sbove form an imegral part of these consolidated financinl statements.
Ag per our repent of even dade attached.

Jor M5 K A & Assoclaies
Chartered Accountants

PFlace: Bengaluru
Dage: 23 Seplember 2022

[RW 8

Mathew George
Chief Financial Offtcer

for and on behalf of the Board of Direciors of
Medi Assist Healihcare Services Limited
ASDOFAZODOPLC02T229

Jit Singh Chbatwal
and Whole Time Director

Diate; 23 September 20237

DIN; D664367T7

(4

Megha Matoo
Chiel Compliance Officer and Company Secretary
ICSE Membership Ne: F-10665

Place: Bengaluru
Diate: 23 Seplember 2022



Medi Assist Healtheare Services Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
Al amourts are in Indian Rupees in millions excepd share darg and per thare daie, imless otherwise stated)

L For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Notes 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Continuing operations
Imeame
Revenue from operations i1 393810 331741
Other incomes a2 182.47 22548
Tatal income 4,120.57 345189
Expenses
Employss benefits expense 23 1.556.7% 1,432.64
Finance costs 24 15,50 57.26
Depreciation and amartismion expenses 25 284.08 31519
Oiher expenses 16 I 46544 1,037.39
Total expenses 133081 1.841.48
Frofit before excegtional items and fax for the year
Exceprional items 26.11) -
Profit before tax B06.87 610.41
Income tax expense:
Current tax 36 15327 BS540
Deferred tax (credit)’ charge 35 18.93 (55.05)
17220 130.35
Prafit afier tax for the year from continuing operations 634,67 38008
Discontinued operations 37
Profit/ Joss for the year from discontinued operstions 10.04 [ 150.54)
Tax credit from discontinued operations {2.53) 111
Profit/ loss for the year from discontinued operations (met of taxes) 7.51 (117.31)
Profit after tax for the year 42,18 161.75
Oiher comprehensive income
liems that will not be reclaszified to statement of profit and boss
Re-mensurement of defined benefit (assets) abilities (28.06) [5.87)
Fair value changes in equity instrament through other comprebensive income (5.34) 1393
licaeme tax relating 1o items that will not be reclassified (o stiement of profit and loss T.68 (1.55)
Total other comprebensive income for the year, net of income tax (15.72) 4.11
Total comprehensive income for the year &16.44 16686
Earnings per share for confinuing operation 28
|Face value of Rs. 5 per share (31 March 2021: Ra. 5 per share)]
Basic 9.22 5.67
Diiluated q9.14 5.62
Earnings per share lor discontinued aperaiion 28
[Face value of Rs. 5 per share {31 March 2021 Hs. 5 per share)]
Basic 011 (1.75)
Diiluted 011 (1.75)
Earnings per share for continuing and discontinued operation 8
[Face value of Rs. 5 per share (31 March 2021: Rs, 5 per share)]
Basic 833 .92
Diituted 015 188
The notes referred to sbove form an inegral part of thess consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
Jor ME K A & Associntes far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chardered Accounianis Medi Assist Healtheare Services Limdted
Finm's Registration Mumber: 10504 TW CIN: U74S00KA00PLO027 129

-
Jit Singh Chhatwal Satis ugw
rman and Whole Time Director  'Whole Time Director and CEO

DIN: 01606329 DIN; p6643677
V“\é&v@@"'
_—__,...-P' ’,.-'
Mathew George Megha Matoo
Chief Fimancial Officer Chiel Comphiance Cificer and Company Secretary
ICS] Membership Mo F- 10663
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengnluru Place: Bengalury

Date: 23 September 2022 Date: 23 September 2027 Diate: 23 Seplember 2022



Medi Assist Healthenre Services Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amownts are i fidign Rupees in milifons, unless otherwise siated)

For the year ended For the year ended
Pixtiewiny 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax for the year from continuing operations BOGAT 61041
Prafit! {Loas) before tax for the veas from dizcontmued operations 10,04 {150.54)
Adjustmenes:
Depreciation and nmortisation expenses 184.08 315.19
Allowrnce fior expecied credit losses on trade receivables and unbilled receivables 120,71 273,61
Provision for deubdful deposits - 0.55
Proviston for doubaful advances 0.55% 334
Creditors! Provision no longer required written hack (11.52) (20.61)
Rent eoncession - [26.50)
Emplovee stock eption expense 23.04 -
Finance costs 2871 47.60
Profit on sale of investments in muiusl funds (12.35) (11.72)
Profit on sale of non-current investiments - (46.43)
Interest income (31.29) (78.30)
Net gain on financial assets mensured o fair value through profit and kss (46.34) (B.94)
Loss on transfer of property, plani end equipment {60.34) .
Operating eash Mows before working capital changes 1,112.16 L0767
Working capital adjustments:
{Decrease) in trade payables (33.14) (3377
Increase (Decrease) in other labilies 262,92 (151.99)
Increase in provisions 1.7 11.16
Decrease in trade receivables (97.61) (47.18)
Decrease/ (Increase) in other nssels {185,36) 38373
Cash generated from operations L070.67 1,069.84
Income taxes refund/ (paid), net [426.68) 324,58
Net cash Nows gencrated from operating activities (A) 643,99 1,394.42
Cash Mows from Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, other intengible assets including capital advances {60.06) (11967
Intangible assets under development {refer note 7) {57.67) (12.86)
Proceeds from szle of non-current investments - 13848
Purchase of non-current investiments - {0.50)
Sale of property, plant and equipment, other intangible assets including capital advances 80.27 .
{Purchase of i/ Proceeds from sale of current investments, (net) (B55.46) {443.41)
Investment in fixed deposit sceounts {B.65) {242.02)
Proceeds from maturity of fixed deposits 3407 -
Interest received 28,51 T1.98
Net cash Nows used in investing activities (B) (828.99) (608,00
Cash Mlows from Minancing activides
Repayment of non-convertible debentures - (2.0
Repayvment of lease liabilities (Refer Noie $(b) A) {129.59) (90.15)
Dvidend paid (172.15) -
Finasice costs paid {1.207 (5.77)
Net cash fows used In financing activities (C) (302.94) (97.92)
Net Inerense! (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {487.94) AREAS
Cash and cash equivalents a1 the beginning of the year 633.89 {54.56)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 145,95 633,59
Component of cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 12 (c))
Balances with banks
- In current scoounts 145,69 63306
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - 058
Cash on hand 0.26 0.25
Total cash and cash equivalents 145.95 633,89

{This space i intentionally lefi blank)




Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022 (continued)
(Al amonnis are in indign Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stared)

Reconciliation of financial liabilities forming part of financing activities in accordance with Ind AS Tt

For the year ended For the year ended
Putvioiliny 31 March 2012 31 March 2011
{2) Lease liahilities (Non-current and corrent):
Orpening balance 353,00 41748
{i} Non-cash movements in financing activitles
Additions 13.86 9.3
Deletions - =
Interest expense for the year 271.51 33.04
Rent concession . (26.50)

{1i) Cash movements in financing activites
Repayment of lease Habilities {12957 (90.15)
Lease liability outstanding

27480 353.00_

The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect methed s set cut in Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows w's 133 of Companies Act, 2013 ('Act’) read with
Ruile 4 of the Compantes (Indian Accounting Standards ) Rules 2015 and the relevant provisions of the Act.

The notes referred 1o above form an integral part of these consolidated fnancial slatements,

As per our report 6f even date attached

for MSK A & Associntes for and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of
Chartered Accountanis Medi Assist Healtheare Services Limited
Firm's Registration Number: 105047W CIN:UT4900 K AZD00PLCO2 7229

D% %Jﬂ Simgh Chhatwal %

Chatrman and Whole Time Dircctor Whole Time Director and CEQ

DIN: 606329 DIN: 06643677

Mk s

Mathew George Megha Matoo

Chief Financtal Officer Chief Compliance Officer and Company Secretary

ICS1 Membership No: F-10865

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: 23 September 2022 Date: 23 September 2032 Date: 23 September 2022
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Medi Asxist Healtheare Services Limited
Notes to Consolidsted financinl ststements {continued)

1 Reporting entity
Medi Agtist Healtheare Services Limited (“the Compamy” or “Parent”), was incorporated on 7 Jume 2000 under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956, The Company received onder from the
Regustrar of Companies with fresh certificate of incarporation wpen conversion from Private Company to Public Company with effect from 20 March 2018, The Compay®s registered office is Medi
Assist Henlthcare Services Limited, Tower D, 4th Floor, IBC Knowledpe Park, 4/1, Bannerghanas Rosd, Beapaluna 560 019, The business operations of the Company are carried out al various cities
in Indin,

The Comparyy, and its subgidiary i.e. Medi Asgist Insurnnce TPA, Private Limited, (“MATPA") (collectively the "Group®), {8 mainly engaged in the business of Thind Party Administration (TPA)
services provided by ithe subsidiary, The Groap has signed up contracts with several peneral and health insurence companics o manage the requirements of their policyholders, s well & with
healtheare providers (sich as hospaals) to casble & netwark for policyholders 1o avail of cashleis trestment ai pre-negotinted furiffs. The Group slso provides business support services, lealih
managemenl services, consullancy services and contact vemtre support and other allisd gervices perinining 1o the healtheare and healsh insurance secior, The Group primanly derrves its incame in the
Tarm of TPA fees from mssmnce companies expressed either as a0 percendage of the insursnce premium paid by the insared 1o the insurance company or &3 a fixved price per memben’ Baomily, The
Groap also derives income from pre-policy check ups mnd other allied services provided o insurance companses, and for policy adminsstration services rendered to Covernments 1o enable public
health schemes.

Pursiani to the Scheme of Amngenent, duly sanctioned by the Mationsl Company Law Tribusal (NCLT}, vide Owder dated 4 Movember 2020, with effect from the Appointed Date ie. | Septermt
2019, the CH Business of the Comgpany has demerged info Ms. Mandsls Wellness Privaie Limited (MWPL'), Accordingly, the Group has disclosed the discontmuntion of C1 business s
discontirued operntions as per the requirement of Ind AS 105 ° Noa currem asset beld for sale and Discontimeed operation’, the details of which nre stated in Refer Mabe 37 (i),

The Board of Directon of the Company vide resolution dated 30 Decernber 2070 has approved the discontineation of the business pertaining o card processing which e mainly penermting revenie

from Govemment contracts. Accordingly, the Oroup has disclossd the discontimustion of card processing business 25 discontinued operations a5 per the requiremeni of Ind AS 105 * Non current asset
held for sale and Discontimued operation’, the details of which are stated in Refer Note 37 (id). The Group bas re-represented the comparmtive information diss 1o the discontinued operatioes,

The Consobidsted Financial Siatements compreses the fnancial informaticn of the member of the Group as under;

Comniry of Vo of Lnterest
Mame of subsidiary Imcorporntion As As al
il March m';.l 31 March 2021
e Astist Insurance TPA Private Limited Indis | 9.9

1 Basis of accounting and preparation

A Statement of compliance:

The Consolidated Financial Statements has been prepared in accordance wath Indisn Accounting Standards ['Ind A5 82 per the Compandes {Indisn Accounting Stndards) Rules, 2015 notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2011, (ihe ‘Act) and other relevani provisions of the Act as amended from time 1o ime

Thess Consolidmed Financial Stseinests have been prepared for the Group 2% 8 poing concern on the basis of relevand Ind A5 that are effective s ot 31 March 2022, These Consolidaied Financial
Seatements have been spproved by the Board of Direciors on 23 September 20232,

B Fanztional 8 nd presentation currency

These Consolidated Firancisl Satements are presented in Indian Rupees, which 13 the Group functional carrency. All emounts have been roumdied to the reares) million, upto two places of decimal,
unbess atherwise stated,

C Basis of meass remend
The Conzolidated Financial Statemnents have been prepared umder the hissoszcal cost basss, excopl for the following:

[1tems Measurenseni hasis
|Fimmanceal assets and binbilities {mchsding derrvatives o ) Fair value

{Share based paymont at gras dete Fair value

[ Defined benefit and olber long term emplayes henefits obligations Present value of defined benefit obligations

D Use of estimates and jedpements
In preparing these Comsolidaied Finsncial Statements, mansgement has made estimates, judg and pticns. These estimates, judgemnents and assumptions affect the applicstion of
acoounting policics and the reported amounts of assels and lishilities, the disclosmes of contingent lisbilities ot the date of the financial statersents and reporied amounts of revenues and expenses
duiriag the vesr. Accounting estimates could chimge from period io period, Actua! results could differ from thess estimsizs. Approprisic chanpes in esilmates are made 0s mansgemment becomes aware
of changes in cim <} fing the estd Changes in estimares are reflecied in the Mmancial stascametsts in e year in which changes are made and, iff maierial, their effects are disclosed
in the nates to the Tinance] satements.

Estimates and underlying msamgisond e reviewed on an onpodng basis. Revisions to sccousiing estimales are recognized prospectively.
Judgement, estinzates and assumptions sre reguiced in particular for:
{a) Determination of the estlmated useful livess

Useful lives of property, plant and squipment are based on the life prescribed in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013, In cases, where the usefial lives are differes from that prescribed in
Schedule 11 and in case of mangible assets, these are estimmed by management aking im0 sccount the nanme of the assed, the esiimated usage of the asset, the opsrating conditions of the msel, past
history off replacement, snticipatsd technobogical changes, manufacturers” warranlies and maintenses sUppoet.

(b} Recognltion of deferred tax assets:

Diéfermed iax nssets snd Tinbilities are recognized for the future tax comsequences of lemporary differences berween the carrying valies of assets and Eshilities and their respective tax bases, and
unutitized business loss and depreciation carry-forwands amd tax crodits. Defermed tax sssets are recognized (o the extent thal it i probeble thnt future txable mcome will be availsble agninst which
the deductible iemparary differences, urused tax |osses, deprecistion cerry-forwands and unused tax credits could be utilized.

(£} Recognition and messurement of defined benefit obligations:

The abligatson arsing from defined benefin plan i determined oo the basis of actunrial assumptions. Key scharial assumptions mclude discount mite, trends in salary escalotion, sctusrinl raes and
life expectancy. The di rate s o med by ref tor market yields ot the end of the reporting period on govemment bonds, The period to maturity of the wderlying bends comespond o
the probable matursty of the post-employment benefit ohligations. Due 1o complexities imvolved in the valestion snd Bs fong term nature, defined benedl obligmson & sensitive ta changes in these
assumptions. All sssumptions are reviewed sf each reporing periosd.

{d} Falr valeation of employee ghare options:

The fair vahuaticn of the ensployves shire options is besed on the Black-Scholes Mide! use/fide
expected dividends and discound rate, under option pricing model.




Medi Assist Healtheare Services Limited
Maotes 0 Consalidated fnancial statements (continsed)

2

Basis of scconnting and preparation {continued )

I Use of estimates and judgements (contlnsed)

() Impairmeat testing:

(2

(b}

Property, plast and equipment, goodwill, intangible sssets and other assets are fested for impasrment ot least snnuslly and when event occur or changes in circumstences indicste tha ihe recoverable
aimiail of the sget or cash gereraling units to which these pertain is less than ifs carrying value. The recoverable amount ef cash genermting urits is higher of value-in-use and abr value Jess cost 1o
digpose. The calculation of valee in use of o cash genemating unil involves we of significant estimates and assumptians which includes nameover and eamings mishiples, growth rates and nel mergins
usad b0 caloulate projected fusre cash Mosvs, risk-adjused discount rae, fuhare sconamic and market conditsons,

Businesy combinntion:
In sceounting for business combinations, judgmens i required in identifying whether an idecaifishle ineangible asset is to be recorded sepambely from poodwill Additionslly, estimating the
scquasifion. date fair valee of the identifisble asscts {including useful life estimates), lisbilities acquired and contingent considerstion assumed involves management judg These s

are hased on information evadlable at the acquisition date and are based on expectations and assumptions that have been deemed reasonable by the mmnagement. Changes in these judgmerss,
exlimates, and assumptions can msterially affect the results of operaticns.

Leases

The Group evahates if an amsgement qualifies to be 8 bease bused on the requarements of the relevant standard, Identificarion of & bease requires sipnifican management judgmest. Compatatson of
the leass liabilities and right-to-use el fegiires mamagement 1o estimate the lease ferm (including anticipricd rencwals) mnd the applicable discount rate. Management estimaies the lesse term
based on past practices and reasonably estimated’ anticipated fisture events. The discount rate i generally based on the incremental borrowing mie specific to the lease being evaluned or for a
partfolio of leases with similar characieristic,

Expected credilt losses on financinl nsets:

The mmpairment provisicas of financial assets are bused on assumptions about risk of defouh and expected timing of collestion. The Group usss judgment in making these arsumptions and selecting
ibee inputs o the impairment caleulsion, based on the Groap past history, customer's credirworthiness, exising market conditions as well as forward looking sstimases ot the end of sach reposting
years.

Mensurement of fair valuss

The Group's secounting poticies and disclosures require the measarement of fair values, for both fnencial and von-finsmcisl msets and lisbilities, The Group has an established control framewnri
with respect to the measurement of fiir values, The Group regalarly reviews significant unohservable inputs and valstion adjussments, I third parry information, such ns broker quates or pricing
services, is wsed b0 mensure fair valocs, then the management aisesses the evidence obinmed from the third parties to suppon the conclusion that such valustions mee the requirements of Ind AS,
including the: level in the: fair vahse hicrschy in which soch volustions should be classified,

When measaring ihe fair value of a finsncial asset or & financial lEsbility, the Group uses observable market dsn as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels io o fair value
hicrarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techiques as follows,

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in nctive markets for idestical nssets o labilities,

- Level 2: inputs ather than quoted prices included in Leved | that are abaervable for the ssset or lisbility, sither directly (ie. &5 prices) or indirectly {i.c. derived from prices).

= Level 1; inputs fior the asset or lishiliry that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs),

IF the imputs wsed to messure the fair vale of an asses or 8 Llisbiliy fal into different bevels of the fair valee hiersrchy, then the fiir valus mespremend i coepanised in ibs entirety in the same level of
the fair vahse hiemrchy as the lowest bevel input tha is significant (o the entire messurement,
The Group rocognises transfers between bevels of the fuir value hisrarchy at the end of the reporting pericd during which the change ks ccoumed,

Further information about the ssumgptions made i measuring fnir values is included in the following noies:
- Mote 31: Employes Stock Optian Scheme,
= Mote 32: Financia] Insfruments.

Current and gon-current classificnthon

The Ciroiap presents sssets and bshilities i the Consolidated Balance sheei based on current’ nos-cumrent classification.

An psset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the folbowing criteria:

= it is expected 10 be realized in, or &3 imended for sale or consamption m, the Groep's normal openating cycle,

= it is held primarily for the purpose of being raded;

- il i expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporiing dase; or

- it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricied from being exchanged or used (o seitle  kiobility forat keas: 12 menths affer the reposting dstc.
A liahility i clussified og carrent when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- is expected o be senled in the Group®s nommal operating cycle;

- it i beld primarily for the purposs of being traded;

- it i due to be settled within 12 mosths afier the reporting date; or

= the Croup doss not have an uncenditicnal right to defer serlement of the liability for af least 12 mionths after the repoming date. Terms of & labiliy thet could, ut the option of the coumberparty,
result in ity setilement by the dssos of equity netraments do not affedt ils classificstion.

Current aisets’ linbilities mclude current portion of pon-current financinl assery’ liabilives respectively.

All ogher assety’ linbilities are classified as noo-cwrent. Deferred tax assels and Labalities {if any) are classified & non-curres assets snd labilines

Operating cyele
Bnsed on the nature of the cperstions and the time between the acquisition of asets for processing and thedr realizstion in cash or cash equivalents, the Group has nscennined ils operstmg cvels as

rwelve momtls for the purpose of currestinon-curend classification of sssets and liabilitkes,

{This space iv intentonally left blank)




Medi Assist Healtheare Services Limdied
Nodes to Consolidated finascial stafemends (continued)

3 Significant aconanting palicles

The sccounting policies sei out below have been applied consisiently throughout the period presented in these Consolidmed Finencial Statements, and have been applied consistenily by Growp
enlitiea:

8. Basis of conselidation
Suwbridiary:
The Company determines the basis of control in line with the requirements of Ind 45 110 Conselicdursd Fimncial Sterememnis.

Subgidiary is entity controlled by the Growp. The Group controls an entity when i1 is expoded to, or hes rghts o, varoble reems from it ivolvement with the entity and has the shility to affect
those returns through s power over the entity. Subsidiary are fully consalidated from the date on which contro] is tansferred #o the Group. They are deconsolidmed from the dase that control ceases.

The Group combines the financisl siwemens of the parent and ity sobsidiary line by line sdding woether fike iteons of sssets, labilities, equity, income and expense, Inercompany transactions,
balances and unrealized gains on iransscrions between Ciroup entities are climinated. Unrealized losses are abso eliminated miess the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of wansferred
assel. Accounting pabicies of subsidiary have been changed whers necessary 1o ensure consistency with the policies sdopied.
Mon-controlling. interests (“MCT") in the resulis and equity of sibsidiary sre shown separstely i the Consolsdaied Balance Sheet, Consolidsted Ststement of Profit and Less and Corsolidated
Statement of Changes in Equiry respectively. Also the employee siock option reserve of the sebxidiary Compamy represents the ESOPg granted to cousterparty {emplovess of the Group) not forming
pari of the comsolidnted reparting entity are clesssfied and presented as NCL
All intra-Giroup balances, eransactions, incoite and expenses are eliminated m full on corsolidaton.
The accowtng policies of subsidiaries have been changed when necessary to align them with the palicies adopted by the Group.

b. Finandial indiruments

i) Recogmnition and initinl measurement
A finances] mstrument (s any contract that gives rise to @ financial ssset of one entity and @ firencinl lishility or equity mstrument of anosher entity, Financis] msmaments abso include derivaive
contracs fuch as fareign currency forward comtrcts.

Finameial instrarnents abse covers contracts b buy or s2ll o noo-financial fem that can be seeflsd net in cash or another finencial instrument, or by exchanging financisl Femmumesnts, 52 i e contracts
were firancial mstrumends, with the exception of contmcts that were entered into and comiinue to be beld for the purpose of the receipt or delivery of o non-financial ibem in sccardance with the

entity's expeoied purchass, sak or usage requircmeats.
Finareisl assets and fnancial Habilities e recognised when the Group becomes o party 1o the contracnml provisions of the insrumesis.

Hecognition and initial measarement — Mnancial assels and Mosncial labilithes:

A Tinancial asset (exncept fof trade receivables and comiract assets) or financial lnbility is initislly measured st fair valos plus, for an ilem pot ot fsir value trough profit and loss (FYTPL), iransaction
costs that are direcily attributable to its scquisition or issue. Transaction costs dinectly sreribuible to the scquisition of finmncial sssets or fimancial linbilitics m FYTPL are recognized imenedistely
the Consolidated Swriement of Profit and Loss.

i, Finance ircome consisns of intenest income on funds imvested, dividend income and gains o the disposal of FYTPL firancial assets. Interest income i recognized s it accrues |n the Consolidated
Ststerrent of Profit and Loss, using the effective mieren method,

Dividend income & recogrized in the Consalidated Statement of Profit and Loss on the daie that the Groap’s right to receive peyment is essablished, it i3 probable that the econcmic benefits
nssocisted with the dividend will flaw bo the Oroup, and the of dividend can be | redinbdy,

fii. Finnnce expemses consist of mterest expense on loans and barmaowings and financial labilities. The costs of these are recognized in the Consolidaced Sosement of Profic and Loss using the effective
Enlerest metbod,

Financial asseis

The Group clasifics financial asseis 83 measured = amortized cost, fair value through other compeehensive income (“FVOCT") or fair valee thoough peofit and loss (“FVTPL™) on the basis of
followmng:

- the entity"s business made for managing the fmancial asseis wnd

= the comtrocnas] cash flow charscieristics of the finencial asset

Finarscinl azscis are pol reclassifbed subsoquens Lo their ndtial recognition, eacept if and in the period the Group changes its busiress modz| fior managing firancial mssets,

Amartized cost:

A fanancial assel is classified and measared at amortized cost if bath of the following conditions are met:
= ke Financinl sssef is held within a business mode| whose objective &5 to hold financisl asseis in order 1o collest contracnal cash fows and
« the contracrual terms of the firencial sssel give rise on specified duwes to cash Aows that are solely payments of principel and merest an the principe] amoust eotstending.

Fair valwe through sther comprehensive income (=FVOCT™:

A financial asset is classified ond measured s FYOCT if both of the following conditions sre met:

- the financial asset is held within o business mode] whess objeciive B schieved by both collesting contractual cash Aows and selling finencial assets and

- the contractual terms of the financinl asse give rse on specified dutes 1o cash flows that are solely paymenss of principal and inferest on the principal smouns oststanding.

Ou initial recognition of an equity mvestmenl that is not beld for trading, the Group may irrevocsbly elect 10 present subsequent changes in the imvestment's fuir value tn OC1 (desipnated s FYOC] -
equity imvestment]. This election is made on an vestment by imvestmend hasis.

Fair vatug thraugh profit and loss (“FYTFL")

A Financinl ssset i clasgifbed and menused ot FVTPL anbéss Bt o measured af amovtized codt ar at FVOCL This mcludzs all derivative fmancial sssets, On inifinl recognition, ihe Growp may
irrevocably desipnate o firancial ssser that otherwise meets the reguir 0 be | ot amortized cost or at FVOCT a3 at FYTPL if doirg 50 eliminstes of significantly reducss an accounting
mismatch that would ofherwise arise.

Fimnncial assets; Business model assesvment

The Groap makes an aesessment of the ohjective of the business model in which a frencial ssset is held o investment level because this reflects the best way the business: &5 managed and information
is provided to managemest. The iformation conssdened inchdes:

« the stased policies and objectives for each of nach ipvestments and the operation of those policies in practice.

- ithee righes that |Hmﬂ:pm1mul:huhunmmd:lllﬂurmlalmhmmmmmmdeumdhuwh:mhmw

= the frequency, volume and timing of ssles of financial asses In prior pesiods, the reasans for ssch sales and gxpe

Tramglers of firancial assets 1o thind partes in tanssctions that do nol gualify Enrdn-em,pﬂum -

Fimancisl assets that are held for rading or ore managed and wivose performance 18 evaluated on j/TE8

"8 contmuing recopnitian of he



Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited
Muotes to T lidsted Minancial {enntinued)

3 Signlficant sccounting palicies (contlmued)

Fimancial assets: Amessment whether confractusl cash flows are solely paymenis of principal and interesi:

Faor the purposes of ikis assessmeni, *principal” is defined as the fwir value of the financial asset on mitial recognation. *Interest’ is defined as considsration for the fme valoe of money and for the
credit sk asseciated with the principal amount outsading during & pariscalar period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g lquidity risk and sdmisiserative cosis), as well as a
profit mangin.

In assessing whether the contracnaal cash flows are solely paymenss of principal and imerest, the Group conssders the contracraal verms of the msrument, This mcludes assessing whether the financinl
BSSEl cOnbding & contrscrual ters that coold chaspe the tming of smeunt of comtrachial exsh flows such thas i would Bot meet this condition. In making fxis sssesamend, the Group considens:

- contingent evers that weonild chanpe the smownt oe timing of cash fows;
= ey that may adjust the contrectunl coupon rmie, including varinbie interest rahe features;
- pyment and extension f ard

rmru thi ﬂmiﬁ:ﬁmﬂ:’iﬂmﬁnﬂ}ﬂnﬂm specified assets (e g pon-recowrss fesures).

A prepayrieed eanare {8 consistent with il solely payments of prncipal and interest erterion i the prepayment amount sobstartially represents uapaid amounts of priocipal end interest on e
principal amount outstanding, which may inclade reasonable additiomal compensation for early termination of the contact. Additionally, for 2 fnancial asset scquired of a significant discours or
premium bo ils contractual par amcunt, o featare that permits or reguires prepayment st on smour that substantislly represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (bt unpaid) comtractunl
ingerest (which may also includs rensonable adiditional conpensation for early termination) is reated as conaistent wigh this criserion if the fir valoe of the prepayment festure is insignificant o imitial
recogniticon.

Financial asvets: Subsequent measurement and gains snd losses

Financial sssets ot FWVTPL Thess sssets are subsequently messured o fair vaboe, Net jmins and oases, including emy interest or dividend income, are recognised in the Comsolidsted
Stmemnent of Profit and Loss.
Financial sssets ot amontised cost These asseis are subsequently messured ot smortised cost asing the effective inferest method. The amartised cost is reduced by impainmeni kosses. Interest

imcomee, foreign exchange gaing and losses and impairmeni are recognised in Comsolidmed Semement of Profit and Lose. Amy grin or loss on derecopniti
ls recopmised in Comsolidated Siaement of Prafic and Loss.

Equity irvestments ag FVOCT These assets are subsequently menasured at fair valoe. Dividends ore recognised s income in Consolidared Smoement of Profit and Loss unless the dividend
clearly represents 8 recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gairs snd losses are recopnised in OC1 and are not reclassifled o Consolidated
Staiement of Profil and Loss.

Financial Eabilities: Classification, subsequeni measurement wod gains and losses

Financial lishilitles are classified as messured a1 amontised cost ce FVTFL. A finmncial lisbiliny is classified as ot FVTPL I it is classified as beld for rading, or it & & dedvative ar it is designaied as
such an initial recognation. Fmancial lishilities at FVTPL are messured o fair vahie and net gams and losses, mchuding any imierest expense, are recognised in Consobidated Stsiement of Profit and
Loss.

Other financial labdlities are subsequently measured ar amontised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gaing snd losses are recognised in Cormolidated
Smtement of Profit and Loss, Amy goin or loss on derscognition is also recognised in Consoldated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

Financial asvets

The Greup derecognises a Mnancial asset when the contrsctual rigivs 1o the cash fows fom the linancaal asser expire, or it transfers the rights 1o recerve the comraciual cash flows in & rarssction m
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transfered or in whach the Groap peither transfers nor retams substantially all of the risks and rewards of
cwnership and does nod retain control of the finoncaal asset.

Finamoial Mabilires

The Group derecognises & firmncial Hability whes #s contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Group also derecognises a financial Hability when its terms are modified and
the cash flows under the modified tenns are substantislly different In this case, a mew fnancis] Hability based on the modified terms is recognised &t Fair value, The difference between the camying
nmaun of the financinl liability extinguished and the new Financie] lisghility with modified ferms is recognised in Cemsolidsted Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iv) Offserting Ananctsl instruments:

Finaneial assets and fimancial liabitities are offset and the net amount presemied in the halanee sheet when, end only when, the Group comrently has a legally enforceabie right to set off the amounts
and it intends either 1o sefile them on o net basis or bo realise the msset and serile the linbility simulaneosly.

Fareign eurrency transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are tmnslated inie the respective functional currency of the Ciroup ot the exchangs rates at the dares of the tmnsactions.
Monetasy asscis and liabilies denominaied in foreign currencies are wansisted mio the functioaal currency &t the exchanges rase of the roponting date. Nos-monelary mssets and Habilities tae are

moeagured il fnir value in 8 forsign currency are translabed into the functional cumency ol the exchange rute when the fair value was determmed. Non-monetary items that are measured based on
histomical cost ina foredgn currency are translohed ot the exchamge mie ot the drle of the tnsaction. Foreign currency diffierences are generally recognised in the Consolidmed Smtement of Profit and

(This space v intemtiomally leff blank)




Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited
Notes b Consolidated Minancisl sislements {continned )

3 Significnnt sccounting policies (continged)
d. Cosh and cash equivalents

Cesh and cash equivalents in the Comsolidated Baiance sheet comprise cash at banks and om hend and shari-term deposits with s original masuriy of three months or kess, which are subject
'i:ulpll'i:p'llrﬂ:ufd‘l.m.ps invalpe,

Far the parpese of te Consolidete Satemenit of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consial of cash excluding restricted cash balance and shori-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding

bank overdrafis as they are considered am miegral past of the Group's cash management

& Cash Now statement

Cash flows are reported using mdirect method, whereby net profits before tax is adjusted for the effects of mamsactions of & non-cash natuee and any deferrals or sccruals of past or futare cash

receipts ar payments. The cash flows from operating, mvesiing and financing activities of the Group anc segregated.
I, Earnings per share

The basic earmnings per share ("EPS’) is compused by dividing the net profit' (loss) afier wx for the years anributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares

cutstanding during the vesr.

The namber of shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted mverspe namber of shares comidered for deriving baale carnings per share and alio the weighted average
pumber of equity shares that could have besn issoed on the conversion of all dilative potential equity shares. Dilustive potential equity thares are deemed comverted & af the beginning of the period

umless lssued m a later dabe. In computing diluifve eaming per share, anly polential equity shares that are dilative e which reduces eamings per share or increases loss per share are included,

Basic EPS & cobculmed by dividing the profii for ike year atiributable to equity bolders of the Group by the weighted avernge numbser of squity shares outstanding during the Fnancia] year, sdjusied
for bonus elements in equity shares lssved diring the year and excluding treasury shares. The weighied average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presceied is
ndjussed for cvents, such as bonus shares, stock split, other than the conversion of podential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without & corresponding changs

in resoimces.

Diluged EPS adjuost the fiperes used in the determination of besic EPS 1o consider:;

* The afier-income tax effect of imerest and other financing costs assocsated with dilutive polertial equity shares, and

* The weighied sverage number of sdditional equity shares that would heve been cutstanding assuming the conversion of all dibative potential equity shares.

g Revemue recognitien
L Revenue ts recognized upan transfieering contral of promised services o customens in an amotmni that neflects that consideration we sxpect fo néceive in enchange fior those services.

The Group derives revenoe from rendering Third Peny Adminisiration (TPA) services is messured either as o p e of i ] fum ar per ber! family covered under the

policy depending an the terms of the contract emtered mnto with insurance compandies and government agencies, Such smounts are recognized &5 revenue on & pro-rts basis during the period of the
dirlymp ¢ e policy. Perfi e abligations whils rendering services are satisfied over fime, as and when the services sre rendered gince the customer simultancously receives snd consumes.

the benefits provided fny the Group.
The Group derrves reveiiss from rendering healtheare management services in accordance with the terms of the reb service ags i wiith customers.

The Group derives fevenue frod rendermp bisiness appod servecss in accordance with the tanms of the relevant service agréement exilersd wilh customers, being performance chligaiions are

satisfied over the comtract perind as the Jroup's efforts or inputs are expanded evenly throughaut the contract period.
Reverue from cand processing imcome: are recognised a2 point in time as and when the relsed ssrvices are rendened,
Revenue from licenses where the customers obiains “right 1o access™ ig recognized over the access period..

The Group presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its Consclidsted Statement of Profie and Loss.

Revenue in excess of invoicing are classified as unbilled receivables (wader rade receivables) whene related performance ohligation sre rendered and nght to consideration is ureonditional, Invoicing

in excess of revenues sre classified a3 comtract labilities.

A contrsct Hobiliry is the obligation to trmnsfer of srvices 1o a customer for which the CGnoup has received consideration {or an amount of consideration is due) from the cusiomes. i o cusiomer pays
comsidiration hefore the Group tmnsfers of services to the customes, a contract lsbility is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is dus (whichever is earlier). Contract Hebiliises are

recognised as reverue when the Group fulfils the performance obligation under the coneract,

h. Property, plant and squipment
Recognition and mensurement;

lems of property, plast and oquipment &re measured at cost bess. s Isted deprecintion and uny acc Inted impwirment losses, if any, The cost of an #lem of propesty, plant and equipment

comprises:
u) its purchase price, ncluding impost duties and non-refundable purchese axes, after deducring wude discousts and rehmes.
b} emy cosis directly anributable wo bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it 1o be capable of aperating m the imanner intended by manapeiment.

<) the mitial estinase of the o of dismantling and removing the wem and restaring the site on which it is located, the chligation for which an entity incurs gither when the: isem is scquired or as 3

consequencs of having used the e during s particulsr period for purposes cther than to produce inventories during thas year,

An it of propety, plant sad equi; 15 elimmated from the financial statements on disposal or when o further benefit is expecied from it use and disposal. Any gain or boss on dispeasl
item of property, plunt and equipment is recognised in Cansolidased Statement of Profit snd Loss.

An item of propesty, plant and equipment is elimeated from the financinl sitements on disposal or when no farher benefit is expectsd from its wse and dispossl. Any gain or bass on dispoas]
itemn af property, plant and equipment is recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit end Loss.

Subsegquent eapendilure
Subsequent cxpenditure is capitalised only if & is probable that the fusure ecomermic benefits asgociated with the expenditure will flow 1o the Grow,

of an

of an

Amounts pasd townards the scguisition of property, plant and equipment cutstanding as of cach repoming date and the con of propeny. plant and equipment mol resdy for intended we before such

date are disclosed under capital work-@-progress.
Deprecia tion

Deprecistion en propesty, plant and equipment is provided on sraight-line method cver the useful lives determined baged on miernal assessment by the Munapement which in certain instances are
different from these prescribed under Pant © of Schedule 1l of the Companics Act, 2013 in order 1o reflect actual usape of the sssers, The Croup estimates the useful lives For property, plant ond

equipment as follows;

|Asset categories Usaefl life in years
Furndture amd {Txomnes 10

Adr conditioners o
Coanpuier equipmenl’s - end user devices 3

Motar car 1]
Crempuier equipment’s - servers amd netweork L}
Electrical equiprment's 1]

Hfice equipment 5

Depreciation is provided on o pro-mta basis i.e, from the daie on which asset s ready for wse and ithe depreciation clarge for the year B recogaised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Losa.

Lensehold improvemens are deprecimed over the lesse verm of thres 1o six years or tle usefisl bves of the assets, whichever is Jower.



Medi Assisi Healtheare Services Limited
Mates to Consolidated Manneial statements (enntinwed)

3 Significant sccownting policies (continued)
L. Intungible pssets

(I} Recognition and messurement
Acyuired intanpille assers

Intangshle assels are rocognored when i i probatble that tee fulire conomic benefits that are aftributable to the sssets will flow to the Oroop and the cost of the sxset can be mensured relishly.
Intangihle assets are stited o cost less accumulated izatinn and imp Iexgzeg, i ay,

The estimated wseful life of an sdentifiable mtangible ssset is based on & mumber of faciors including the effocis of absolescence, demand, competition, and ogher economic faciors sach as the
stahility of the industry and known technological required 10 olitain the expected fucure cash flows from the asset,

I iy & d i ibile avsets

Expenditure on reseanch activities, underaken with prospect of gaiming pew scientific or technscal kmowledge and undersmnding, is recegnised in the Consolidmed Statement of Profin and Los e
inecarred,

Development activities ivolve & plan or design for the production of pew or substantially improved produocts and processes, Development experditure 8 capitalised caly If development costs can be
measured reliably, the prodoct or process is technically and commercially femsible, fukare cconormie benefits are probable, and the Group miends 1o and bas sufficsent resources 1o compleio
development and to we of sell the asset. The expenditure capitabised inchodes the cost of materials, direct babour, overhead cosis thae are directly attribatable 10 preparing the asset for its infended use,
enil capitalised barrowing casts. Oiher development expenditure i recognised in Consolidoted Statement of Profit and Loss as incusred.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequend inare is capéinlised ondy when it increases the fature economic benefits embodied in the specifie asset to which it relates. All other expenditire is recopgnised in Consaolidated
Samiement of Profit snd Loss as incurred.

Amartimtion

Amortisation i calculsted based on the cost of the assel, less igs residual vahas.

Amprtisation i recopmised in Consolidated Statemnent of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated usefil kives of mtangible sssets from the date that they are available for use.
Mansgement belweves thas period of amortisation is representative of the period aver which the Group sxpects to derive sconamic benefits from the wse of the assets.
Amaortisation methods and oseful lives are reviewed periodically including a2 each financial vears end. Amorrisacion on additions and disposals during the vears s provided on proporiionate hesis.
Goodwill is measured a1 cost bess accumulsied impatrment loss.

The miangible assets are amortised over the estimated useful Hyves & prven beloa

[Asset categories Useful life in years
Soifrware and licenses E]
Cusiomer contracts 1o
[Custamer relutianship ]

I lmpairmest of fiaancial ames

In sccordance with Isd AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loas (ECL) mode] for measurement and recagnition of impairment loss an the folkowing financial assess and credin risk cxpasure:
) Fmancinl sssets which are measured ot amortized cost e.g., boans receivables, deposiis and bank balance,
b} Trade receivables {inchading unbilled receivables) or another financial ssset that resull from transactions th are within the scope of Ind A% 115,

Lass allowances for trade receivables {incloding unbilled receivables) is mensared oi an smount cqual bo lifetime expecied credit losses, Lifeiime expecied credit bosses are the expecied credit losses
that resuli from all possible defiualt events over the expecied life of a finencial insmament. Lifetime expecied credit loss is computed based on a provision matrin which 1nkes n to the account risk
prafiling of customens and hestorical eredit loas expersence adjusted for forward looking information. For other Gnancisl assets, expected credil loss is measared 28 the amount equal fo twebve months
expected crodit loss unless there has been 8 spmificant increase in credit risk from instial recognition, in which case those are mensured ot lifetime expectad credit ks, In addition the Groap hes also
considered crodit reports and other credst mformation for its customerns to estimate the probabilicy of defoult in fuhere and bes taken into sccount estimates of possible: effect from the pandemic
relating 1o COVID-19. The Group believes that the camrying amosnt of allowance for expected credid bass with respect to tade receivables, unbilled receivables and other financial assets is adeguaie.

Wrire aff

The gross carrying amoenl of a fnancial asset is writhen ofT (either partially ar i fisdl) to the extesd that there is no nealistic prospect of recovery, This is generally the case when the Groap determines
that the debtor does pat have assets or sources of meome that could generate sufficient cosh flows 1o repay the smounts subject to the wnse- off. However, financial nssess that are wrinien off could
still be subject fo enforcement activities in arder b0 comply with Group's procedures for the recovery of amoant due,

k. Impairment of non-financisl assees

Gooidwill is tested for impairment st beast ansnially and when evenls occur or changes in circumstances milscste thil the recoverable amount of the cash genersfing wist 15 less than its carrying valoe
The umpairment et i3 performed at the level of cash genemting unit or groups of cash-generating undts which represend the lowest level af which they are monidiored for gviernal manspement
purposss, Esch CGU represents the smallest groop of assets that generntes cash inflows that wre legely independent of the cash inflaws of other assets or CGL,

The Group assesses lomg-lived nssets such os property, plant, equipmend and scquined’ self genersted imangible assets for impairment whenever evenis or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrymng amount of mn asset of group of sssets may not be recoverable. 17 any such indicaison cxists, the Group estimanes the recoverable amount of the assel or group of aswets,

The recoversble amoust of & astel of chsh genersting unit 3 (e higher of its far value less cost of disposs]l (FVLCD) and its valwe-m-use (VILT), The VIU of long-lived assets & calculnted using
progected future cash flows. FVLCD of & cash generating umit is computed using tumover and eamings mubtiples. 1 the recoverable smcant of the nsset or the recoverable smoumt of the cash
generting nid to which the aseet belongs i less tham its carrying smount, the camying smeant is redeced 10 its recovershle amoani. The reduction is meated a8 an impaarment logs snd (s recopnized
in the Consolidated Seatement of Profie and Loss. If st the reporting dase, there {3 an indicaticn thet a previpashy sssessed impairment loss no bonger exfats, the recoverable amount is resssessed and
the impairmeeni losses previcusly recopnired are reversed such thal the assst B recopnized i {18 recoverable smoust bul not exceeding writlen down value which would have been reporeed if the
impairment hasses had not been recognied mitinlly. An impairment boss recogrised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

(Thiz space is lntentions iy left btank)




Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited
Motes to Consolidated figancial 4 tements (continued |

3} Significant sccounting policies (continoed)
L Leases

Palicy applicable with effect from I Agril 2019

Al imceplion of & contract, the Group aisesses whetler & contract {8, or contains, a hease. A contract (s, or comtaing, & lease if e comtract comveys the right to control tse use of an identified e for a
period of tmme in exchange for considerstion.

Group as a bsser

The Gircup's lease sssef class primarily congist of leases for buildings. The Groug, af the inception of 8 cootract, assesses whether the contract is & lease or nod bease. A comiract is, of coniains, 3 lease

A the contract conveys the right 1o control the use of an identified #sset for @ tinee in exchange for a coneideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right 1o controd the use of an identified
mmsset, the Group misesses whether:

(1) the contract invalves the use of an ientified asset;
{if) the Giroap has the right 1o obain subsaniislly all the economs: benedits from wse of the asse throughow the persod of use; and
{iid) the Greup has the right 1o direct the use of the asset.

The Group recognises 8 right-of-use asset and a bease liability 1 1be lesse commencemend date. The cost of the rght-of-use ssset messured ar inception shall compense of the emount of the maml
measurement of twe bense liability adjusted for amy lease payments made 8 or before the commencensend dale less any bease moentives received, plus any milia] direct costs meurred md an estimase
nrmﬂinhmbrhlmhdwh‘uﬂmﬁghmdu]quwm;h Mmmﬂmmikhﬂdm@m assels is mhmqu:nﬂrmﬂl
at cost less mny sccumulated deprecintion, accumalsted umpaiment bosses, if any and adjusted for any remensarement of the lease Hability. The right-of-use asset is subsequerily deprecimed using the
strasght-line method from the commencement dae o the end of the lease term Right-of-use assefs are jested for impairment whenever thers 13 any indicaticn thar their earmying ansousis may nod be
recoverable. Impalnment loss, if any, s recopndsed in the Consolsdaled Statement of Profit and Loss,

The Oroup measises the lease hiability a2 the preses vahue of the lsase payments that are pol paid o the commencemend date of the lease, The lease paymenis are discounted using the inlerest rage
implicet in the lease, if tha rafe can be readily determined. I that mie cannot be readily dstermined, the Group uses increments] borrowing mbe. For leases with ressonably similar characterstics, the
Growp, on o lease by leass hasis, may sdopi either the meremenial bomowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing mie for the portfolio as s whole. The lease pryments shall imclude
Tined payments, varishle lease paymenis, residunl value pasrasiees, exercise price of o purchase option where the Group is reasonably ceetain to exercise that option and payments of penaliies for
serminating the Jease, if the lease term reflecis the lessee exercising an option bo terminale the lease, The bease liability &5 subsequenily reanessured by incressing e carmymng smeount to reflect inferest
an the lease lisbility, reducing the carrying amount o reflect the lease paymenis made and remeasuring the carmying amount to reflect any resssesiment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-
substance fixed lmse payments. The Groap recognises the amount of the reamessurement of lease liability dus to modification s an adjustment 10 the ripht-ofase ssset and statement of profit and
loss depending upon the nahwre of modification, Where the carrying amouni of the right-of-use asset i reduced 10 zero and there is o further reduction in the measaremend of the lease [ability, the
Girowap recopnises ary remasning amos of the re-measurement in Consolidated Statensest of Profin and Loss.

The Growp has elecied nod o recognise right-of-use asseis ard lease lakilities for shoet-term feases that bave 8 lease term of 12 months or less and ledses of low-valos asseis. The Group recogmises
the lease payments msseciated wilth these leases a5 an expense on a sirmight-line basés over the leass term,

Extension and termination options are mcheded in o number of property and equipment leases across the group, These are used io maximiss operatsonal flexibility in terms of managing the assets
wsed in the group’s operations. The magonty of extension and termination epdians held are exercisable only by the group and not by the respective lessar,

Critbcal judgemernty in desermining the Iease term

In delermiring the lease lenm, management considers all facts and circumstances that creaie an economic incentive Ip exercise @n exiengion opiion, or nol exsrcise a tenminaticn option. Exiension
aptions (or pericds after serminstion options) are only nchaded im the lease term if the lease & reasonably certsin 1o be extended (of not terminated],

For leases of office, the folkowing factons are nommadly the most relevant:

() If there are significent penalties 1o permmste (or not exiend), the group is typically reasonably certain o extend (or nod eerminate).

(b} IF mmy lensehald improvemenis are expected 1o have 2 significant remaining value, the group is typically ressonably certain to extend (or nol temminate].

(e} Criberwise, the group congiders other factors including hisicrical lease durations and the costs and business dismaption required to reploce the leased asset. Mom extension options in offices lenses
lave not been included in the lease lability, bocsise the group could replece the asseis without signdficani cost or business disnuption.

m. Emploves benefits
i) Shart-term emplopee benefiis
Employee benefits poynble whally within twelve monoths of receiving employee services sre classified =y short-ferm employee benefits, These benefity include salsries and wages, bonus mnd cx-
gratin. The undiscounted amount of shoet-lenn employes benefils expected o be paid in exchange for employee services is recogrized s an expense for the relsted service rendered by employees.

Defined contribution plans

A defined comiribution plan & a post-employment bemefit plam under which sn enify pays specified coniribations to a separaie enfity and has no obligation to pay amy further amounts, The Group
mnkes specified momihly contributions iowards employee provident fund and employees sale insurance 0 @ Govermament administered scheme which is o defined conribution plan. The Groap's
contributicn is recognized s @ expense in the Consolidated Statemens of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Diefined benedit plans

The Group’s gratuity benefil scheme is o defined benefis plan. The (Growp®s net obligation in respect of a defined benefit plan is calculaied by estimating the amouani of future bemefit ilat employes
have carned in refurm for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefi is discounted to determine s present value.

The preserd valae of the obligation under such benefit plan is d med by independent qualtfied acrapry wsing the Projected Unit Credit Method which recognires each period of service thar give
rise b0 edditional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measares each unit sepagately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measgred o present values of estimated finare cash flows. The discoanted rates used for determining the present value are based on the market yields on Govemmment Securities as s
the halance sheei dmes. The Group classifies the grensiry as currenl and pon-cusrent based on the scruaral valuation repem,

Acturial gains or losses are recognised in Other comprehemsive incoms ('OCT) |, Further, the profit or koes docs mot includs an expocted rehem on plan asseis. Instend net intercst recopnised in
Consolidsied Sitaiement of Profit and Loss is caloulated by opplying the discount rte ased 1o messure the defined benefi: obligation to the net defined benefit lability or assel. The achal retun on
the plan assets abave ar below the discount rife is rocognised as part of re-messurement of net defmed liobality or asset throagh OCL

Re-mensurements comprising scruarial gains or Joases and renam oo plan assets (excluding smousts mchuded o met interest en the ner defined benefin lisbiliny) ae not reclessified o Consolidated
Swasement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods.

Chanpes in the present valee of the defined benefit obligtion resuliing from plan amendments o cunailmenes are recogniscd immedistely i the Consobidaied Samiement of Profit and Loss as past
service cosl

The Group bave considered only sech changes in legtslsiion which have been enncted upoo the baksmce sheet dute for the purposs of determniming defined beneflit obligation.

Compensated absences

The emplovess can carry-forasrd 8 portson of the umililised sccnoed commpensated sbsences snd witlise it in fubure service periods. The Group records an obligation for such compensated absences in
the period = which the employe eilip services that meresse this entithement. The oblipation & messured by independent qualified sciusry wsing Use Projected Unit Credit Method.
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3 Significant seconnting policies (continued)
m. Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based compensation

The expenses relating 1o mmhhw&mﬁhﬁﬂmmﬁivﬂ:hmﬂmﬁ 102, Share-Basad Paymem. These Emploves Stock
Owptions Scheme [“ES057) granted ane measured by reference 1o the fair value of the instrument ai the date of grant.

The experse is recognized in the Cansalidated Statement of Profi and Loss with a comesponding increase io the employes stock option plan reserve, @ companent of equity. The equity swinuments
gererally vest in a graded manner over the vestng period. The fair value determined al the grant date is expensed over the vesiing period of the respective ranches of such grants (sccelerated
amortization).

‘When the ferms of an equity-setiled awand are modified, the minimum expense recognired = the expense had the terms had pot been modified, if the original ferms of the award ase met, An
additional expenss s recognised for any modifkcarion that ineressss the toal fair valise of the share based payment wanssction, or [z otherwise beneficinl 1o the emploves as measured ol the dsle of
madification.

The dilative effect of outstanding opticns is reflected ns additions] ghere dilution in the compatation of diloted eamings per share

Emplayee siock option reserve of share option granted by MATPA s classified as non-contralling interest in ilse Consolidsted Ststements of Changes in Equity.

n. Business combination

In mccordance with Ind AS 103, Business combinations, the Oroap accounts for basiness combinstions after noquisition dade using the acquisition methed when conirol is transferred io the group.
The cost of an scquisition is measured at the fair value of the assels given, equity instruments issued and lishilities incusred or assumed & the daie of exchanpe. The cos of acquisition aleo meludes
the fair valee of any comtingent consideration and deferred consideration, if any. Ary excess of purchase comideration over the fair value of net sses sequired & corsidersd ms goodwill. Any
poodwill tet arscs & bested ammunlly for impasrment. Any gain on 8 bangsin purchase is recognised in OCE and sccumulated in equity as capital reserve if there exists clear evidence of the underlying
reaspas for classifying the basiness combiration ns resulting in o bargsin purchase; otherwise the pain is reeognissd directly in equity as capital resarve. Transaction costs are eapensad as incurred

The Group sccounts for the commen conimol trmnsactions in sccordance with the "pocling of mierest” method prescribed under Ind AS 103 - Business Combination for common contro] ransactians
and &3 per the provissons of respective schemes approved by the regulsioes, where a1l the assets and Habilities of manaferor compandes would be recorded a1 the book value ns o the Appointed date,

0. Taxation

Income 1ax ecimprises cusvent and deferred inx. Income 1ax eapense 8 recognised in the Comsolidated Stsemem of Profh and Loss except 1o the exent it relsies o & busmess combimation, ar ibema
disectly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive incanse.

Currrent income ey

Current tio; comprises the expecied tax paysble or receivable on the taxable income Tor the period and amy sdjustment to the tax payable or receivable i respect of previous vears, The smemt of
curren! i reflects the best estimme of the tax smourt expected 1o be padd or rocerved sfter considermp the uncertamty, if any, related 1o income lazes. |l & moasured using tax rates (and tan laws)
enncted or substamiively enscted by the reporting dates.

Carrent iax asseis and curreni iax liabilities are ofTset andy if there is & legally enforceable rght to so1 off the recoprised amounts, and 1 is intended to realize the assets and settle the liabiliy oo a net
hasis or simulianecusly.

Dferved fax

Dieferred tax is recopnized in respect of emporary differences between the carrying smounis of assets and Habdlities For financial reponing purposes and the comesponding amoanis used for mxation
purposes. Dieferred tax is also recopnized in respeet of earried forward tax losses snd tax credits. Defered 1ax is nod recognized for:
-mdﬂfamuiﬁ:gmh'ni'nlmgl.i‘r.imn:l'morliﬂﬂ'ﬂiuhlmimﬂmhmlhmmﬂm;m:ﬂ}u:m“mhpmﬁtwhulﬁ
time of trensaction

= temporary differences relmed o investments in pabgidinries and nssociaes, when the timing of the reveraal of the lemporary differemces can be controlled and it s probable that the temporary
differemces will not reverse in the forceeeshle funsre.

Dreforred fax asseis are recognized to the extent that it is prabable that future taxable profits will be available against which they cen be med. The existence of unused iox leases is srong evidence that
fushure taxshle profit ey not be availsble. Therefore, in cane of a history of receni logses, the Oroup recognizes o defermed tax auset only fo the exiens that it has sufficient taxable iemporary
differences or there i convincing other evidence that sufficient masble profit will be availsble agains which such defemed tax nsset can be realized. Deferred 1 sssets recognized or unrecogaized
nre reviewed s each reponing dase and are recopnized reduced to the extent that @t & probable / no lorger probable respectively th the related tax benefil will be realized.

Defesred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expectzd to apply 0 the period when the asset is reslized or the libitity is settled, based on the lews that have been enacted or substantively enscoed
by the reposting date. The measrement of deferred tax reflects the mx consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, ot the reparting date, 1o recover or semle the
carrying amous of its assets and liabdl®ies

Dreferred tax assets and labdlities are offset if there |s a begally enforceable rght to offsel cument tax lishilities and asseis, and they relste to moome taxes levied by the same tax authority on the smme
taxable entiry, or on differens tex entities, but they ingend 1o setile curment tax Habilites nnd assets an @ nel basis or their 1ax assets and liabdlities will be realized simultameousty.

(Thix spaes Iy intentionally loft blamk)




Mledi Assist Healthoare Services Limited
MNotes to Consnlidsted finuncis] satements (rontimoed )

1 Significant sceounting policies fcontimued)
B Mon-current Assets held for sale and discontinued sperations

Non-current assels are classified as held For gale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily theough sale mther than twough continuing wse. Such asssts are penerally messured s the
lewer of their carryimg amount snd fsir value less costs b sell. Once classified as held-for-sale, intanpible assess and property, plant snd equipment are ne longer amonised or depreciated.

Laosses on fnitial classificaiion s held for sale and subseguent gaing and losses on re-meesunement are recognised in Consolidated Stastement of Profit and Loss,

Non-current assels classifisd as beld for gale are presented separately from the ather assets in the Consolidatsd Balance Sheet. The linbilitizs clessified as held for sabe are presented separsiely from
other lisbilities i the Cansolidated Balance Sheet,

A discontinued operation is 8 companent of the entity that has been dispasad of or is classified ss beld for sale and that represenis 8 separste mojor line of business or geopraphical ares of operations,
i part of a single coordmated plan to dispose of such o line of basiness or aren of operations, or i & subsidiary scquired exchasively with & view to reaale. The results of disconimued operations are
presented separately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit snd Loss.

The post-tax profit or loss of discontimed operations and the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measuremens 1o fair value less costs to sell or on the disposal of the assets cormining the
discontinued operation shall be dischosed separmiely 85 o single smopsmt in the Consolidaied Ssmement of Profit ond Lose.

An analysis of the single amount o the reveroe, expenses and pre-tax profit or Ioss of discontinued operations, the related mcome . expenss as required by nd AS 12 nd the gain or Jos
recognised on the meanwement to fair value less costs to sell or on the dispesal of the msets considnsting the discontipued operation along with the related meome ax exp therean as roquired by
Ind AS 12 may he presented in the notes or in the Consolidared Smeement of Profis and Loss.

4. Provisions (sther than for employes benefits) and contingent linbilities

Provisions are recogmized when there i a present ohiigation (legal nr constructive) as a resalt of a past even, it is probable thar mn outflow of resources embodying ecomamic benefits will be regained
to sestle the obligation and & reliable estimase can be made of the amouans of the ohligation.

The: expensss relating to 8 provigion i presensed in the Comsolidsted Stamement of Profit and Loss net of any refmbursement.

If the effiect of the tme value of money i material, provisions ere detenmined by discounting the expected fittre cash: flows specific to the lisbility, The snwinding of the discount is recognised as
Meance cost

A provigien for cosrous contricts is measared at the present valoe of the Jower of the expected cos of terminating the contract and the expecied et cost of continuing with the cantract. Before a
provision is cstablished, the Group recognises sny impairment loss oa the assels sssocinted with thal contracy

A dischogure for & contingent lability s made when there & & posiible ohligation or n present ohfigation that may, bl will probably not, requize an ceiflow of resources. 'When there s a possible
obligation or o present abligation i respect of which the |ikelthood of owtflow of resoarces is remote, no provisicn disclogure i mads

A combingent aswet is not recognised bl disclosed inthe Growp financial satements where an inflow of econcemde benefit & prababile.
Commizments includes ihe amount of parchese ceder (nei of sdvance) {ssued to parties for completian of asseis. Provisions, contingeni assets, contingent lishilities and commitments are reviewed ml
each closing dase,
t. Corporsie Socisl Responsibility ("CSR™) expenditure
CSR expendiare incurred by the Growp is charged ro the Consalidaned Statement of the Profit and Loss.

4 Segment reporting

Operating segments ane reported ina manner congistent with the imemal reporting provided to-the Chief Opersting Decision Maker (“O0DM"),

‘The Board of Directors of the Group have been identified 2a being the CODM by the mmnagemeat of the Groap, Refer Nale 34 for segment information presestod.
. Cash dividend

The Oroup recognises o lability to make cash distributions to equiry bobders when the disiribution & authorised and the distribation Is no lenger a1 tbe discretion of the Group. As per the corporate
lwws in Indin, & distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders (in the case of interim dividend ir is spproved by Board of Directors. A comespanding nmount is recognised direct by
im equity.




Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited
Motes to Consolidated finsncial statements (costnmed)

r. Receat promouncement on Indian Accounting Sandards (Ind AS):
Ministry of Carporate A fBairs ("MUA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There i no such notification which would have been applicable from April 01, 2022 The
‘{Grpup has mod early adopied any other standard or amendment that has been ssoed bui 15 not yvet effective;

{§} Imterest Rate Benchmark Reform ~ Phase 1z Amendments to Ind A5 109, Ind AS 157, Ind AS 104 and Ind AS 116
The amendments provide tempomry neliefs which address the financial reporting effects when an interbank offered miz (IBOR) is replaced with an allernative nearly risk-free intevess mie (RFR}
The smendmenss includs the following practical expedienss:

-A practical expedient to require contrctual chanped, or changes to cash flows that are direcily required by the refanm, 1o be treated a5 changes to o (oating intérest rale, equivalent b o movemend n
o ket mi= of ivderest

-Permin changes required by IBOR reform to be made o hedge desipnations and hedge documentation without the hedping relationship being discontimeed
~Provide temporary rebief to emtities from having io meet the sepanstely identifinble requirement when an RFR. instrument is designated as o hedpe of a risk component

These amendmenas have no impact on the consolidaled financial smements of the Group, The Group intends 1o use the practical expedieris in funere periods a3 and when it become applicable,

(i) Amendments o lnd AS consequential to Conceptual Framework under Ind AS
The Framework {8 nol & Sandard snd i does not overmide ary specific standard. Therefore, this does not foem part of & et of sandards proneunced by the standard-sefers. While, the F kin
primarily means for the standard-setter for formulating the dards, it has relevance 1o the preparers in certain siksations such as b0 develop consistent accounting policies for areas that are not

covered by » standard or where there is choice of accounting policy, snd io msist all parties 1o undersiand and imierpret the Standards.

The smendments made in following standards dise to Conceprusl Framewerk for Financial Repoming under Ind AS inclades amendment of the foctnoae io the definition of an equity instrument
Ind AS 102- Share Based Payments, footnote to be sdided for definibon of ssbility i.e. definition of Bability i nol revissd on steount of revision of definition in conceptual framewark in case of ind
AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Lisbilities and Contingent Assets etc.

The MICA has notified the Amendments 1o Ind A5 consequentinl 1o Conceptaal Framework ender Ind AS vide notification dated June 18, 2021, applicable for anmual periods begmning on or afber
Aprid 1, 2021, Accordingly, the Conceptual Framework is applicable for prepaners for scoouning periods begieming on or pfter | April 2021,

These amendments have no impact on the comsolidated financial of the Growp.

(i) lnd A% V16 COVID-19 refated rent concessions
MICA issued an smendmeni io Ind AS |16 Covid-19-Relwied Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 in updaie the condition for lessees to apply the relief o a reduction in lease payments crgisally
due on or before 30 June 2022 from 30 June 2021. The amendment applies 1o snniasl reporling periods bopioming on or after | Aprif 2021, In case & bessee has not yet approved the consalsdmed
financial staiements for issue before the issuance of thas amendsmient, then the seme may be applied for armual reporting periods begmnang an ar after 1| April 2030,

These amendments have no impact on the corsplidated Financial statements of the Group.

() Ind AS 103: Business combination
The MCA clarified that for the purpose of this lnd AS, soquirers are requared 1o apply the definition of asset and lisbility given in the framework for preparation end presemtation of consolidated
finsncial statements with Mmﬂmwmhmmwwmm the acquirer does nol recognise tuase cots as part of applying the acquisition method. Instead,
the acquirer recognises those costs i its post m aocordance with other [nd AS.

These amendiments have no mpast on the consolidased financial statements of the Group.

{v) Amendment ts Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 18
In the definition of "Recovershle amound” the waords “the hagher of an assct’s foir valoe kess costs o ==l and its value in use™ e rq:l.lmd.wﬂ'l."l‘uﬂ'ﬂ of an ssset’s fnir valee Insmofm]
mnd its value in us=". The consequential amendmenis are made in Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS I8,

Thee: smendments lave no mpect on the consolidated finmeial siatesmnents of the Croug,

(This space ix imensionally beft blouk)
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Medi Assist Healtheare Services Limired
Wotes to Consolidated linancial statements (continued)
(Al amounes are in Indian Rupees in millions. unless atherwise stated)

5 (a} Right-of-use assers

Particulars Buildings Total
Giross carrying value

Balance at | April 2020 438,37 438.37

Additions: 930 9.30

Balance at 31 March 2021 447.67 44767

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 1 April 2020 §7.60 B7.60

Depreciation for the year 91,60 9160

Balance st 31 March 2021 179.20 179,20

MNet carrying value at 31 March 2021 168.47 168.47

FParticulars Buildings Total
Giross carrying value

Balance at | Agqril 2021 447,67 4767

Additions 24.36 436

Balance as st 31 March 2022 47003 47203

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at | Apeil 2021 179.20 17920

Depreciation for the year 41,95 91.95

Balance as at 31 March 2022 27115 271.15

Net carrying valoe at 31 March 2022 204,88 20088

(Thizs space is intentionally loft blank)




Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited
Motes to Consolidated financial statements {continued)
(ANl amownts ave in Indian Rupees in millions. unless otherwise staled)

5 (b) Lease linbilities

A The following is the movement of lease liabilities doring the vear ended 31 March 2021

As at
s 31 March 2021
Opening Balance 42748
Additions .13
Dedetions -
Interest expense lor the year 33.04
Rent concession (26.50)
Repayment of lease lizhilities {90.15)
Clusing Balance 35300
The following is the movement of lease linbilities during the vear ended 31 March 2022
Asat
Particulars 31 March 2022
Opening Balance 353.00
Additions 2386
Interest expense for the year 27.51
Repaymeni of lease liabdliibes (129.57)
Closing Balnnee 274.80
B The following is the break-up of lease labilitics
Particulars As at As st
31 Mareh 1022 31 March 2021
Current lcasc lizbility 99,58 96.24
MNon-current lease Liability 175.20 256.T6
Tutal I74.78 353.00
€ The tuble below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease linbilities on an undiscounted basis:
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2021
Less than one year 120,78 119.62
One 1o five years 179.09 28746
More than five years - -
Total 299.87 407.08
D Amount recognized in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interest on lease liabilitics- presenied under finance costs 27.51 33.04
Depreciation on right-of-use assets- prescnted under depreciation and amontisation expenses 91.%5 90.20
Expense relating to short-term leases and low value assets- presented under other expenses- rent .9 2662
Less: Rent concession die 1o COVID-19- presented under other expenses- rend (6.6} {26.50)

Druring the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group incurred expenses amounting to Rs. 14.31 million (31 March 2021 : Rs, 26.62 million) for short-term leases and leases of low-
value nssets. For the year ended 31 Mareh 2022, the total cash outflows for leases, including short-term leases and low-value asseis amounted to Rs. 137.26 million (31 March

2021 : Rs. 116.78 million).

During the vear ended 31 March 2022, the Group received rent concessions as a consequence of COVID-19. Since, the change in lease payments is less than the consideration
for the bease immediately preceding the change and there was no substantive change io other terms and conditions of the lease, the Group has elected to apply the practical
expedient which permils a lessee 1o elect nol 1o assess whether a COVID-|9-related rent concession a8 a lease modification. Consequently, the change in lease payments
resulting from the COVID-19-related rent concession is accounted for in the same way it would account for the change applying Ind AS 118 if the change were not a Jease

modification,

Impact of the Global Fandemic ( "COVID-19" )

The Group does not foresee any large-scale contraction in demand which could result in significant down-sizing of its employee base rendering the physical infrastructure
redundant, The leases that the Group has entered with lessars for buildings are long tesm in natre and no changes in tenms of those leases are expected due (o the COVID-19

{This space ix imtensionaliy left blank)
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Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limbted
MNotes to Conselidated financial stnfements (continued)

{All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwize staied)

Nom-current financial asseis

B (a) Investmenis

Asal A al
hcliciiniy 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(1), Orored equity shores
Equity shares a1 Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCT):
124,992 (31 March 2021: 124,992) cquity shares of Rs, § each, fully paid up of The New India Assurance Company 139 19.29
Limited
i), Unguated eguity shares
Investment in equity shares at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Incame (FYOCT):
() 13,719 (31 March 2021: 13,719) equity shares of Rs. 1 each, fully paid up of Healthvista India Private Limited 5493 54.93
{b) 5,000 (31 March 2021 5,000} equity shares of Rs. 100 each, fully paid up of Swasth Digital Health Foundstion 0.50 0.50
6939 T4.72
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof 1396 19.29
Aggregate amount of ungueted investments 5543 3543
8 (b} Other financial assets
Particnl As at As at
S— 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Considered good - Unsecured
Security deposits 14.98 3T
Eamest money deposit ("EMDT) 685 0.47
Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months® 12.09 0.62
Interest accruesd but not due on fixed deposits 013 -
Credit impaired
Security deposils .35
Less: Provision for doubaful security deposits {055}
34.05 41.9%

10

* The above includes bank deposits amounting to Rs Nil (31 March 2021: Rs 0,62 million) placed with bank against which bank guarantes have been issued 1o insurance

companies.

The Group's exposure 1o credit risk is disclosed in Mote 32C (ii).

Nen-Current tax assets {net)

As at As at
Fartioulass 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Advance tax and tax deducted Bt souree, net of provisions 492,47 303,12
[(Frovision Rs 1093.91 million (31 March 2021 Rs 897,18 million)]

492,47 303.12

Deferred tax assets (net)

A at As at
Particalary 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Deferred tax assers
Frovision for employee benefits 39.92 29,91
Allowance for expected credit bosses on trade receivables and 6244 90.63
unbilled receivables and provisions for doubtful advances and
deposits
Securily depasits at amortised cost 078 1.35
Temporary differences on pecrued expenses 11.23 623
Lease liabilities 69,16 #8.13
Onher ibems - 5.30
Total deferved tax assets 183.53 121.55
Deferved tax liabilivies
Excess of depreciation on fixed assets under Income tax act, 1961 over depreciation under Companics Act (29.14) {47.56)
Right of use assets {50.55) (67.57)
Other items {864} -
Total deferred tax labilities (88.33) {115.13)
Deferred tax assets (net)* 95,20 104642
* Hefer Mote 35.

&



Medi Assist Healtheare Services Limfted

Motes to Consolidated financial statements (eontinued)

Al amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)
* Refer Note 35,

11 Other non-currenl assels

Particulars Asat As ut
31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021

Prepaid rent 578 0.35
Capital advances 0.78 841
.56 8.76




MEEEUl AMSEH NERINCENE 3ETVEOES LImiea
Motes to Consolidated finoncial statements (contimued )
{4l ameunis are in Indicn Rupees in millions, waless atherwise sigied}

12
12 {a)

i1
(]

12 (b}

12 (&)

Current - Financial assets

Investments
Ax at As nt
Rartesns 31 March 2022 31 March 2011
[vestments in mutasl funds - Unguoted- Foér Voloe through Profit end Less (FYTPL) 1 ROS5.04 1,030.89
Advance given for basiness acquisition 50,00 -
1,545, 04 1,030,689
Agpregsie amound of unquated investments 1,945.04 1,030.85
Trade receivables
As ai As nt
Particulars 31 March 2022 1 March 221
Considered good - Unsecured 470.14 43361
Credil impaired - Unsecured 207.49 283.00
Taotal recelvalies 677,63 Tlb.61
Less: Allowance for expected crodit losses {207 493 (283.00)
Tatal (A} 470,14 3361
Unbilled receivables
Considered good - Unrecwred
Unbibed receivables T17.56 TS
Unsecured, considered doubyfid
Unbilled receivables B3B8 42738
Less: Allowance for expected credil losses [B.3B) (42.75)
Total {(B) .56 TR
Tatal (A+B) 1,187.70 1,21 080
The Group's exposure {o credit risk and loss allowances are dischosed in Note 32 (i),
Trade receivable ageing:- (utstanding for following period from dee dste of reciepts
As af 31 March 2022
Particulars Ushilled Mot doe  Less than 6 Months 6 Months - 1 Year 1-1 Years  I-3 Yemrs More than 3 Years Tuoisl
Undisputed trade receivable - considered pood TI7.55 502 K diT] 8427 1731 10,89 im 1,187.70
Undisputed trade receivable - which lave E.38 . 1229 B.21 18.75 kKK Wi 134.95 11587
significant increase in credh rsk
Undisputed trade receivahle - credil impained - . . -
Disputed trade recedvable - considered good - - i H L -
Disparted trade peceivable - which have significant - - - = -
Inerease im eredit rigk
Dispated trade recedvable - credit impaired - - - - - - -
Totul TI5.94 315,82 4531 91.4% 35,56 44.18 14,68 1403.56
Logs allowance {215.87)
Total 1,187.70
As mi 31 March 2021
Particulars Unhilled of due  Less than 6 Moothy 6 Months - 1 Year 1-1 Years  1-3 Years Mare than 3 Years Tatal
Unilisputed trade receivables - considered pood EEERT] 371959 (3317 2156 31.58 26,17 578 1,210.80
Undisputed trade  neceivable which have 4175 392 1557 45.74 "™ 104,58 32575
significant increass in credin risk
Undispated rade recedvable - credit impained - = - +
Diispated trade receivable - comsidered good - » - R .
Digputed trade receivable - which have significant - - - -
increase in credit risk
Dispused trade receivable - credit impaired - - - . - - - .
Total LIEET] 3T9.59 {29.25) 59,13 7832 118.06 110.76 1,534.55
Lass allowance {325.75)
Total 1,210.80
Cash and cash equivalenis
As st As i
Rt 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cash on hand (.26 0.25
Balsnces with banks
In carrent sccounts 143,69 631,06
Deposia with original matarity of less than three manls® - .58
145.95 633,89

The Company's exposure 1o credit risk is disclosed in Noge 32C,

* ‘Includes bank deposit of Bs. Wil {31 March 2021: Rs 054 smillion) placed with bank ngainst which bank gusranice have been isswed to insurance companies.
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Netes to Consclidated linancial siatements {continued)
{Ail amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions, unless atheruise rated)

11 id)

12 (e}

Bank balsnces other than cash and cash equivelents

As mt As AL

e 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Deposits wilh original marurity of more than thice monihs but less thas twelve montis N TR
Balunces with benin

Balance with Self funded schemes ** 123 B

38 S13.45

* The above includes bank deposits amounting to Bs |50 millisn (31 Mareh 2021; Rs, 3,76 milfion) placed with bankers agninst which bank guaramiees have been issued 1o customers and licn agninst
carparaie credit cands.
* Ineludes bank deposit of Re. 2218 milllen (31 March 2021; Rs. 229,14 millios) which are under len with bank towards bank puarimee wvailed by the Holding company,

** Balance with Self funded schemes represent finds received from comporates for the purpase of providing health benefit services to their employees.

The Group's exposure 1o credit risk is disclosed in Note 32C (1),

Oiber financial assets
Ao Ag at

Bartlomiiri 31 March 2022 31 March 2011
Congidered good - Unsecured
Security deposits 5524 3836
Eamest money deposit 6,73 =
Accnaed inberest 150 530
Crher receivables® 183.64 147,80
Unpecured, considered danbiful
Inter-carparate deposit ** = 40,00
Less: Allowance: fior doubtful deposits . [440.00)
Imterest acenoed bt not due on ICD ! A48
Less: Allowance for inberest sccrued om 10D - (4.48)
Credit impaired
Security depasits 0.08 008
Lesa: Aliowance for doubtful deposis {0.08) (0u0E)
Orther receivabies 1615 1533
Less: Allowance for doubiful receivables {16.15) [15.35)

249.11 192,36
* Refer Note 40,
* Refer Note 47,

* Represents inter-corponats: depoait {"IC0) provided to Mobiefit Techaologies Private Limited ("MTPL") The term of ICD is 60 months from the date of disbursement and carries an intersst off
B%, peyable om maturity st 30 Augast 2021,

OHher current assets

As ag Asnt

e 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Consdered good - Uarecured
Balances with government authorities 154.59 TR66
Advances to supplisrs B7.51 pi Sl
Advances o employess 586 402
Prepaid expenses 17,50 11246
Considered doubdfie - Unsecured
Advumces to suppliers 16.14 1543
Less: Allowance for doubefisl advances (16.14) (18.43)

1658 12316

(Thiz space iy mtenvionally left Mank)




Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements (continued)
Al amouts are in fndian Bupees in millions except share date and per share data, unless otherwise stared)

14 Equity share capital

As at As at
sk 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Authorized:*
50,700,000 {31 March 202 1: 43,200,000) equity shares of B8 5 each (31 Manch 2021: Rs 10 each) 453,50 453.50
453,50 453.50
Lssued, subseribed and paid-up capital
65,859,212 (31 March 2021: 37,181) oquity shares of Rs 5 each (31 March 202): Re 10 each) *=* 344,30 0.37
344,30 0.37

* Pursuan to & resolution passed by the Shareholders of the Company on 15 Mareh 2021 through extra-ondinary general mesting, the authorized share capital of the Company
of Rs. 453.50 million divided into 45,200,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, 140,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each and 5 Serfes A Computsorily Convertible Prefierence
Shores of Rs 20,000 sach, were reclassified to Rs. 453.5 million divided into 45,350,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each.

* Pursuant to a resolution passed by the Sharcholders of the Company on 7 April 2021 through extra-ordinary general meeting, the authorized shire capital of the Company of
Rs. 453.5 million divided into 45,350,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each were sub-divided to Rs. 453,35 million divided into 90,700,000 Equity Shares of Rs, 5 each,

a) Reconcilintion of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:

Particuiai As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 Mareh 2021

Mumber of shares Amount Mumber of shares Amount
Equity shares
Balance a1 the beginning of the year 37181 0.37 36,082 0.36
Shares isswed during the year® - - 1,0l .01
Sub-division of shares during the year from Rs. 10 to Rs.5 each** 37,181 - - .
Bonus shares issued during the vear* 68,784,850 343935 - -
Balance at the end of the venar 68,850,212 344.30 37,181 0.37

* Pursuant 1o & resolution passed by Board of Directors of the Company on 4 March 2021, Company has converied 9,175 Redeemable Preference Shares into 9,175 Series B
Compulsarily Convertible Preference Shares ("Series B CCFS™) and then extinguished the above 9,175 Series B CCPS of Rs 10 sach by 18sue of 1,099 Equity Shares of Rs. 10
each effective § March 2021,

** 'Pursuant to 8 resolution passed by the Sharcholders on 7 Apedl 2021 and subsequent allotment on 9 April 2021, the Company s sub-divided the face value of its equity
shares from Rs 10 cach to Rs § each. Furthes, the Company has alloited 68,784,850 equity shares of face value of Rs. § each by way of bomus 1ssue to its sharcholders and
comsequently the paid-up share capital of the Company has been increased 1o 68,859,212 cquity shares of face value of Bs 5 each and the Board authorised for appropriate
addjustments on allotment of share split and bonus shares 1o the oulstanding options granted 1o the employees under the ESOP scheme.

b Rights, preference and restrictions sttached to the equity shares:

The Company has single class of equity shares having a par value of R 5 each, Esch holder of equity shares is entiiled 10 one vore per share. Voting rights cannot be
exercised in respect of shares on which any call or othes sum presently payable has not been paid. Failure to pay any amount called dp on shares may lead do forfelture of
shares,

The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subsject 1o the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Mecting, except in case of interim dividend.

In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The disteibution will be in proportion 1o the number of equily shares held by the shareholders.

) List of shareholders holding more than 8% shares of & class of shares

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As 1t 31 March 2021
Mumber of shares % of Holding Number of shares %o of Holding

Eguity shares of Rs. § each fully paid-up (3] March 2021: Rs 10 each) held by:

Medimatter Health Managernent Private Limited 18,703,348 27.16% 10,059 27.16%

Bessemer Health Capital LLC 6,606,084 G595 3,567 9500

Invesscorp India Asset Manapers Pyi. Lid,

Investment manager of [DBI Trusteeship Services Limited, A Investcorp

Infrastructure Fund |, A/C Investcorp Private Equity Fund I {earlier known as 14,910,452 21.65% 2051 a1 658

IDFC Trustee Company Limited, AC [DFC Infrastructure Fund 3, AC [DEC

Private Equity Fund I11}

Bessemer India Capital Holdings 1 Limited 24,731,608 35.92% 13,354 35.92%




Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited
Motes to Consolidated Minancial statements (continued)

Al amenents are in Indian Bupees in millions excepr skare date and per share data, unless otherwise siated)

d) Shares reserved for lssue under employee stock option scheme of the company

Particulars

As ot 31 March 2022

Mumber af options

Amouni

Under Employee Siock Option Scheme, 2013: 23.40,928 (31 March 2021:

654) equity shares of Rs 5 each (3] March 2021: Rs 10 cach)

2,340,928

11.70

Riefer Mote 31 for ESOP scheme details,

&) The Company has rot bought back any class of equity shares during the perlod of live year immedintely preceding the balance sheet date,

f) The Company’s chjective for capital management is 1o maximise shorcholder value, safeguard business continuity and support the growth of the Company. The Comparny
determines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans, long-term and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are met through equity, cxiemal

‘horrowings and operating cash flows penersted.

£) Promoter's Shareholdings

As @i March 31, 2022

Shares held by promoters at the end of the vear %% Change during
FPromoter name Mo of shares %% of total namber of| the year

shares

Dr Vikram Jit Singh Chhatwal 2,539,092 3.69% -
Medimatter Health Management Private Limited 18,703,348 27.16% -
bledimatter Health Management Privale Limited jointhy 537,080 0.78% 2
with Dr. Vikram Jit Singh Chhatwal
Bessemer India Capital Holdings 11 Limited 24,731,608 35.92% -
Total 46,511,128 67.55% -

As at March 31, 202§

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

% Change during

Promoeter name No of shares % of total nember of ithe year
shares

D Wikram Jit Singh Chhatwal 1,371 169% -

Medimatter Health Management Privare Limited 10,099 27.16%

Medimatter Health Management Private Limsted jomthy 290 0.78%

with Dr. Wikram Jit Singh Chhatwal

Bessemer India Capital Hﬂk‘li!‘lE 11 Limited 13,354 35.02% -

Total 25,114 67.55% S

As at 31 March 2021
Number of options




Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited

Notes to Consolidated fnancial statements (continued)

(AN amounts are in ndian Rupees in millions except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)
15 Other equity

As at As ai
PR e 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Securities premium * {f) T45.87 1,089.79
Debenture redemypdion reserve (ii} - *
Retained eamings 237283 1,756.98
Employee stock option reserve {iii) 100,37 77.33
Other equity {iv) JHDES 360,85
Share application pending allotment
Amalgamation adfustment reserve iv) (172,15} ‘
Demerger deficit balance (v} {370.18) {37018}
Gieneral reserve 1.36 1.36
304795 2,915.13
Becurities premiuvm
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,089,79 St 80
Movement during the year
Premium on issue of equity shares - 5.9
Utilisation of securities premium on issue of bonus shares (242.92) -
Balance at the end of the vear ] T45.87 1,089.79
Debenture redemption reserve
Balance at the beginning of the vear - 1.36
Movement during the vear
Transfer of Debenture redemplion reserve - (1.36)
Balance at the end of the year {id) - -
Retained earnings comprises of the Company’s prior vears® undistributed earnings after taxes
Balance at the beginning of the year 1.756.:99 | 450,06
Movement during the vear
Total comprehensive income for (he year 616,46 266,90
Dividend paid* (172.15) -
Balance at the end of the year 1,201.30 1,756.99
Employee steck optlon reserve
Balance a1 the beginning of the year 55.75 5575
Maovemenl during the year
Employes stock option compensation cost (net) 23.04 -
Balance at the end of the year {iid) TE.T9 5575
Other equity
Balunce at the beginning of the year 369.85 36985
Movement during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year {iv) 360,85 169,85
Demerger deficit balance
Balance at the beginning of the year {370.18) (370.18)
Movement during the vear - -
Balance at the end of the yvear v (370.18) (370.18)
General reserve
Balance ai the beginning of the year 1.36 -
Movement during the yvear
Transfer of Debenlure redemption reserve - 1.36
Balance at the end of the year 1.36 1.36
302699 190356
8.No Parpose

() Securities premium
Securities premium is used 10 record premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is wiilized in accordance with the provision of Companies Act, 2013,

(i) Debenture redemption reserve
The company has issued debentures in India and as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, is required 1o create debenhre redemption reserve owt of the profits of the
company available for payment of dividend.

(iify Employes stock option reserve
Share based payment reserve: is used 1o recognise the fair value of equity settled share based payments provided to the employees, For further details refer Note 31{a) and 31(bk)
fior ESOP scheme details,




Medl Assist Healtheare Services Limited
Motes to Consolidated financial stsfements (continoed)
(Al amouets are in Indian Rupees in millions excepi share data and per shave data, nnless otherwise stated)

(v} Demerger deficit balance
The reserve wrising on aceount of demerger of CH business,

Dividends*

Finnl dividend on Equity Shares at the rate of 37.80% [i.e. Rs.1.895 (Rupees One rupee and paise cighty nine cnly)] per Equity Share of face value of Rs. 5/- {Rupees Five
Omnly) was declared for the financinl year ended March 31, 20232,




Medi Assist Healibeare Services Limited
Motes to Consolidated financial siatements (continwed)
{At] awmounts are fo Indiam Bupees in muillions, wnlers otherwise naed)

Non-carrent finaneial habilities

16  Provisions (mon-corrent)

17

In

Asat Asut
Particalars 31 March 2022 31 Muarch 2021
Provistan for emplayee benefits:
Gratuity {funded]* 112,21 B5.56
112.21 HE56
"Rtefer Note 30 (b
Current financizl liabilities
17 {a) Trade payables
A al As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Total ooistanding does of micro, small end medism emierprises® nn 3L
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro, small and mediom enterprises®* 257,68 0377
19020 33408
* Refer Mote 42,
** Refer Mote 40,
Trade payable ageing:
As ot 31 March 2622
Particalars Untbidlied Mot due Cratstanding for followleg period from due dute of
Less than | yesr 12 years 1.3 years Muore thas 3 years Tatal
555 V56 (X7 137 - - 15,10
Cithers 150,01 . 42 43 68 1.85 027 65 157.88
Dligparted dues - MSME - 594 G941 119 Ouas . 17.22
Drispanted dues - Others - - - - - - -
Total 158.96 T0.22 5301 441 093 LES 290.20
Asat 31 March 2021
Particulars Unbilbed Mot due Chatstanding for following period from dur dute of payment
Less than | yesr 1-2 vears 2-Yvears Maore thas 1 years Tatsl
MSME 1.11 199 480 0,52 . 1,69 12.51
|Cithers 193,566 {39.38) 10875 - - 9.24 x03.27
Drisputed duss - MEME . 4,11 959 1358 - 131 18,59
Diispated dues - Others D - 0.50 = - - 0.50 |
Total 194.77 (31.28)| 124.64 4.50 - 41,24 A3dRT
17 () Orther fimancisl lishilitics
As ot Asat
Prrticuiasy 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Employes benefiis payasble * al.84 3868
Creditors for capital goods © - Rt
Imterest sccnsed on mooame tas G606
Advance received® - 61,60
Other pryables® 2071 .15
91.55 173,72
* Befer Note 40,
* Includes dues of micrp, amall and medium enerprises smeunting to Re.Nil (3] March 202 E: 0.29),
Other current liabillties
Agmi Asat
Fuat—— 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Siarutory due payable 21613 2480
Unher payables 4139 .
15782 114,80
Provisions (current)
Maote As nt As it
Farticulars 3 March 2022 31 March 2021
Provision for emplover berefits
Cirmtuity fumded Wb 4 62 818
Employee compensated shsences 30 (e} 552 .14
A db.44 3131
Balance ot the beginming of the year IE. TR .
Provision creaged during the yenr .00 178
Reversed! Usilisstion during the year {7.001) .
Balsnce ot the end of the year (B) 19.78 18.78
(A+R) 6,22 5110
Current tax lnbilities {net) % ASSp aihca,
C & L2
Z L v
Fa - Asat Asaf
g 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Currenil tax payable - B1.50
: ER




IVEEUD ANSIST HEAINCERE SEFVICES Limiten
Motes to Consolidated financial statements (continoed)
(AN amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions, unfess otherwize stated)

11 Revenue from operations

For the year ended For the year ended
R 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Revenue
Sale of services:
Third Party Administration {TPA) fees 4,174.65 323662
Add: epening contract leabilities 1.216.08 1,000.33
5.390.73 433695
Less: chosing contract liabilities {1,536.96) (1,216.08)
Inéome from TPA services (@) 1835377 312087
Income from health management services b 43,99 4538
Income from license fee 0.44 7.01
Less: closing contract liability - (5.B8)
{c) 044 2.03
Ctther aperating revenues;
Business support services* {d} 32.90 58.63
Total (a+b+e+d) 303810 3,217.41
* Refer Note 40,

(A) Disagpregate of revenue information

The table below presents disaggrepated revenues from coniracts with cusiomers for the below years ended by offerings and contract type, The Group believe that this
dkagm-egnﬁmhcsldepictshwﬂummmﬁmhgawmmqormmumdushfhmmeﬂbmdhyhdmmwmdnlh:rmmumin factors,

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulacy 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Bale of services
Income from TPA services 3185377 312087
Income from health management services 43,99 45.88
Income from License fee 01,44 203
Business support services 3990 5863
3,938.10 312741
Contract counterpartics
Govemment Cuslomers 471.15 49925
Others 3,466.95 2,728.16
3,938.10 3,127.41
Revenue by contract type
Ata point in time (India) 3,938.10 322741
3193810 322741




IVIEIL ASSIST HEAITHCAre Services Limited

Motes to Consolidated financial statements (continuesd)

Al amownts are fn Indian Bupees in millions, unless stherwise stated)
{B} Contract balances

() The following table provides information about receivables, contract assels and contract liabilities from contract with customers.

For the year ended Faor the year ended
Easiouiare ol 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade receivables 12 (b) I,187.70 1,210.80
Contract liahilities 1,536.96 1,221.96

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on payment terms of 30 to 90 days.
The contract liabilities primairily relate to billings in excess of revenues. The billing schedules agreed with customers conld include periodic performance-based payments.
Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit period.

(ii) Significant changes in the contract Habilities balances during the vear are a5 follows:

Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Movemenr in contract labilities:
Opening balance 1,221.96 1,100.33
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract libility balance at the beginning of the year (1,221.96) (1,100.33)
Increnses due to cash received, excluding amounts recognised as revenue during the year 1,536.96 1,221 .96
Closing balance 1,536.96 1,221.96

(C) Transaetion price allocated to remaining performance abligations
The fallowing table inclades revenue expected 1o be recognised in the future related to performance obligations that ase unsatisfied (or partially satisfied) at the reporling

date,
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Within | year 1,53532 1,216.06
1-3 years 1.64 4.52
More than 3 vears - 1.38
1,536.96 1,221.96

(This space is intentionally left blank)




Meds Assist Healtheare Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated financinl statements (continued)
(Al amounts are in fndian Bupees in millions, unless atherwise stared)

21 Other ineome

For the year ended Far the year ended
Partioinr 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interest income:
en ferm deposits and loans 2851 4131
on other financial asseis 278 354
on other services® . 3345
on income tax refiund 5204
Met gain on financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss 46.34 £.94
Profit on sale of investment in mutual funds 1235 11.72
Profit on sale of platform business 69.70 -
Creditors! Frovision no longer required written back 11.52 20061
Profit on sale of investment - 4642
Giain on transfer of property, plant and equipment 034 -
Miscellaneous income 10.93 T45
18247 12548
* Refer Mote 40,
Employee benefits expense
For the year ended For the vear ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Salaries, bonus and allowances 1,354.71 1,269.74
Contribution to provident and other funds* 102,56 106.21
Ciratuity 2793 bt Bk
Employee stock option expense ** 2304 -
Staff welfire expenses 48,15 30.96
1,556.79 1,432.64
* Refer Nowe 30,
** Refer Mote 31 {a) and (b).
Finance costs
For the year ended Faor the year ended
Farticatars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Bank guarantee commission 0.79 052
Irterest on income tax - .66
Interest on debentures* - 0.23
Interest on bank overdraft - 13.51
Other mterest 1.20 0.30
Interest expense on bease liabilities®* 27.51 33,04
29,50 57.16
* Refer Note 40,
* Refer Moie 5 (b).

Deprecistion and amortisalion expenses

For the year ended

For the vear ended

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 116.73 11835
Diepreciation on right-of-use assets® 91,93 50.20
Amoriisation on intangible assets 7540 106.64

184,08 31519
* Refer Note 5{a).




NIEQE ASSIST HERINCArE SErvices Limited
Motes to Consolidated financial statements {continued)
(Al amounty are in fndian Rupees in miflions, unless otherwise stated)

26 Other expenses

For the year ended For the year ended
Farticulars 31 Mareh 2622 31 March 2021
Sub-contracting expenses 553,77 32928
Legal and professional 126.69 119.88
Allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables and unbilled receivables 22.14 153,89
Repair and maintenance 139.18 8135
Postage and commumication B3.55 73.81
Printing and stationery 141.58 45,53
Claimes disallowed $5.68 4479
Power and fuel charges 26,64 2431
Advertisement and business promotion T262 21.25
Travelling and conveyance 41.66 16.79
Security expenses 14.51 I5.85
Corporate social responsibility 10,70 13.08
Enrolment card charges 35.66 10.01
Rates and taxes 13.93 1027
Software subscription charges 726 7.50
Provision for doubtful advances .55 334
Provision for dowhtful deposils - 0.55
Insurance awareness mittatives nn 24
Loss on sale of fined asset {Net) 9.70 =
Housekeeping charges 427 4,66
Insurance 178 &.17
Auditors remunerntion * 1232 4.50
Bad debts written off 98.57 6177
Less: Utilisation of provision {08.57) {22.96)
Advance wrillen off T.14 =
Seminar, training and conlerence expenses 245 0.53
Recruitment 0.24 4.05
Rent** 16.29 0,12
Director sitting fees 7568 0.83
Miscellaneous expenses 137 1.50
1,469.44 1,037.2%
* Auditors' remuneration (excluding Goods and services tax)
For the year ended Faor the year ended
Particulacs 31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
Statutory audit fees 11.42 4.40
Certification fees 0.90 010
Other services (ncluded in Legal and professional) - 7.10
12.32 11.60

** Hepresents lease rentals for short term leases and leases of low valus assets

(This spuce is intertionally left blank)




Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited
Motes to Consolidated financial statements (continued)
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

17 Contingent liabilities and commitments

Particul As at Asat
e 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Contingent liabilities:
i) Bonus as per The Payment of Bonus (Amendment) Act, 2005 for the period from | April 2014 to 31 March 2015 (Refer £ia &%
note a) '
it} Demands raised by income-tax suthorities for assessment vears 2017-18 on account of disallowance of amortisation on 22.46 20.75
poodwill and prior period expenditure and disallowsnce w's 14A to the extent applicable [Amount paid o Income tax
authority under protest of Ra. .02 million (31 March 2021 £.02 million)]
i) Disallowance of Employes stock option expenses and disallowance under section 144 for assessment year 2017-18 174 374
iv) Demand raised by Income tax authorities for assessment years 2018-19 on account of disallowance of amortization of 067
intangible assets : =
v} Disallowance of Employee stock option expenses and disallowance under section 144 for assessment year 201819 0.78 -
vi} Disallowed w's 40{a}ia) of the Income-tax Act, 1961, for payments made to various hospitals during the financial year 464.96 464.96
2007-08 and 2008-09 {Refer note b) i L
vii) Bank puarmntes 180.83 150.83
Commitments:
i) Mmﬂmnmmﬂnﬂmh%mm‘ﬂmuﬂmmﬁtﬂ@ 2026 40.20
Notes:

E]

(b}

(ch

The Payment of Bonus (Amendment) Ace, 2015 was notified by the Government of India with retrospective effect from | April 2014. The Honorable High Court, Kamataks
based on the wril Petition no 52722016 and 531 L2006, has vide its order dated 2 February 2016, stayed the operation of the =aid notification for the fnancial year 2014-15. The
obligation to pay the Bonus for the financial year 2014-15 will arise only if the High Court disposes off the writ petition in favour of the Government, Henee, the Company has
taken a view that an amount of Rs 6.15 millien which is the approximate statutory bonus lability, for the eligible employees in respect of financial year 2014-15, has been
considered as an contingent linbility,

As per Income tax assessment order, the Assessing Officer has disallowed ws 40(a){ia) on payments made to various hospitals during the financinl year 200708 and 2008-09
totsling 1o Bs 118.92 million Rs 964.75 millien respectively and accordingly raised & demand of Rs. 29.71 million and Rs. 43525 million ws 143(3) of the IT Act respectively
against Dedicated Healthcare Services TPA (India) Private Limited (DHS). DHS filed an appeal agamst these above Orders as the payments to hospitals were made from the
funds received from insurance companies were an advince and all payments were adjusted against the sdvance reoeived. The payments were not claimed as an expendinire,
hence, these cannot be disallowed under said section, The IHS received favorable orders from CIT{A) on § August 2012, ITAT on 10 December 2014, and the High Court on 30
November 20135, However, the IT department has filed an appeal with The Honorable Supreme Court of India, Further, the subsidissy company had scquired DHS on dated 30
September 2016 and pursuant to the merger order daied 6 April 2018, DHS merged with the subsidiary company from the appointed date specified in the Scheme i.e. | October
2016,

In light of judgment of Honorable Supreme Cowrt dated 28 February 2019 on the definition of “Basic Wages” under the Employees Provident Funds & Mise, Provisions Act,
1952 and based on Groop evaluation, there are significant uncertainties and Oumerous interpretative issues nelating to the judgement and hence, it s unclear as 1o whether the
clarified definition of Basic Wages would be applicable prospectively or retrospectively. The amount of the obligation therefore cannot be messured with sufficient relisbility for
past periods. The Group will evaluste fts position and update its provision, if required, on receiving further clarity on the subject. The Grroup does not expect any material impact
of the same.

(This space is intentionally feft Bank)




Medi Assist Healtheare Services Limited
MNotes o Consolidated financial statements (continued)
{AIl amownts are in fndian Rupees in millions exceps share daia and per shave data, unlets otherwize stated)

18 Earnings per share

N N For the year ended For the year ended

STy i 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit attribatable to ordinary shareholders
et profit for the year attributable to the equity share holders from continuing operations {a) 634.67 38006
Net {loss) for the year attributable to the equity share holders from discontinued operation (b} 7.51 {17313
‘Weighted average number of cquity shares outstanding for basic EPS (e)* 68,850,212 66,571 478
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for dilused EPS {dy** 65,435,773 67,652,946
Earnings per equity share
Basic earning per share of Rs 3 each {for continuing opertion) [afe] 922 5.67
Diluted earning per share of Rs 5 each {for continuing operation) [ad] 914 5.62
Basic earning per share of Rs 5 each (for discontinued opermtion) [b'e] 0.11 (1.75)
Diluted earning per share of Fis 5 each (for discontinued operation) [bvd] 0.11 {1.75)
Basic earning per share of Hs 5 each (for contiming and discontinued operation) [{a+b)e] 033 jom
Diluted earning per share of Rs 3§ each {for continuing and discontinued operation) [(a+byd] 9.25 3188
* Computation of weighted average namber of equity shares used in calculating basic earning per share is set out below:

For the year ended Far the yvear ended

Firtioniary 31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021
Openimg balance 36,082 36,082
Conversion of Redeemable Preference share mto CCPS and thereafier Equity (Refer Node 14{a)) 1,059 El
Capitalization due to share split from paid-up capital of Rs.10 per equity share 10 Bs. 5 per equity share (Refer Note |
below) 37,181 36,163
Capitalization of bonus shares issued (925 Bonus share issued per equity share) (Refer Note 1 below) 68,784,850 66,901,550
Weighted average namber of equity shares 68,859,212 646,973,676

1. Pursuant to a resolution passed by the Sharcholders on 7 April 2021 and subsequent allotment on 9 April 2021, the Company bas sub-divided the face value of its equity shares
from Rs. 10 each to Rs. 5 each. Further, the Compeny has allotted 68,784,850 aquity shares of face value of Rs. 5 each by way of bonus issue to it% shareholders and conseqguently
the paid-up share capital of the Company has been increased o 68,859,212 equity shares of face value of Bs. 5 ench and the Board authorised for approprinte adjustments on
allotment of share split and bonus shares to the cutstanding options granted to the employees under the FSOP scheme,

** Computation of weighted average number of equity shares used in calculating diluted earning per share Is set out below;

Fer the year ended For the year ended
Pareaiare 31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
Weighted average number of cquity shares outstanding during the period for calculating basic EPS 68,859,212 66,973,876
Effect of dilutive potentinl equity shares:
Employee stock options 576,561 679,070
Welghted average number of equity shares 69,435,773 67,652,946

(Thix space is intentionally lefy blank)
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements (confinued)
(Al amonts are in Indion Rupees in miflions, wnless ovherwite simted)

A Employes benefits
The Group contribates to the followisg pest-emplayment plats.

a) Defined contribution plan:
The contrbutions paid’ payable to Employes Provident Fund, Emgloyees State Insusance Scheme ["ESI"), Employees Pension Schemes, 1995 and other funds, are determined under the relevant
wumdscbnmud‘wmmnduemmgﬁudum'm:]msum.:rpmﬁuudhudu{ngmnvhmhhmlmmhmﬂﬁm:mmmwm
ather than the contributions paysble 1o the spproved tnans‘sppropriate musthorities.
m&umwmcmmmd:ﬂmimdulmmmmnlmmulnmmwwmﬁmwhm towards provident fund and employees state insurnce, which ase
demmmmmmmmmhsmmdmmmmmh&wmmmmmm“:m to the statement of profit and loss a4 they scorae, The amount
recognized &5 an expense towands contribstion to provident fund snd employee state insurance for the year amounts to Bs. 7503 million (11 March 20210: Ra. &0.48 million)

b) Defined bemefit plans:
The Group has a defined benefit gramuity plan governed by the Payment of Grtuity Act, 1972, The plan entitles an employes who hes rendered atheast five years of continuous service to receive 15
dnys salary for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months based on the mte of kst drawn salary (basic: plus deamess allowance) by the employees concemed. The Group's
linbiliry is actaarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of ench year. Actuarial pains! (Josses) are recognised under otber comprehensive income in the Stasement af profit
and loss,

The Group kas considered only such changes in legishition which have been ensated upta the Balance sheet date for the purpose of determining defined benefit obligation
Baged on the scnoarial valustion obtrined in this respect, the fflowing isble scts out the detsils of the employee benefit ohligation and the plan sisets as st balance sheet date:

As at As mt
s 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Diefined benefit ohiigation 155,52 12145
Fair value of plan assets {6.68) 769
Net defined benefit obligation 152.84 113,76
Currend liabilicies 40.62 2818
MNop-current linhdlities 112.21 B5.56
I Movement in net defined benefit labiliny
Reconciliation of present valoe of defined benefit obligation
Asat As at
Eoeaia 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balasce at the beginning of the year 121.45 10559
Bercfits pnid {16.17) {14.31)
Current service cost 2218 17.30
Past service cost . 275
Interest cost ie .40
Actunrial gainsbosses) recognised in other comprehensive income
Changes in demographic assumpeions . 185
Clanges in finoncinl sssumgtions {1.58%) (R
Experience adjustment 30,09 1.6%
Effect of scquisition’ {divestiture) (164} )
Balance af the end ﬁlhﬂ 159,52 12145
Reconeciliation of presént value of plan assets
As at As ot
S 31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021
Balance st the beginning of the year (7.68) (T.85)
Addition on business combinatian = -
Contributions peid by the employer {14.73) (14.71)
Benefiis paid 1617 1431
Intesest income 029 041
Return on planned assets recognised in other comprehensive income - -
Re-measurements on Plan Asseis - Loss/ (Gain) (0,016} 074
Experience adjustment 0.02 0.23
Balance at the end of the year (5,68} (7.69)

Expense recognised in statement of prafit and lois

For the year ended For the year ended

Partionlers 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current service cost 2229 17,30
Paat srvics cont : 275
Intercst cosa 539 540
Teerest income (0.29) {041}

2739 2514

Expense recogniied in other comprebensive income

For the year ended Far the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2022 3 March 2021
Changes in demogmphic asumptions - I.B%
Changes in finnncial assumptions (1.89) 0.5
Experience ad] 1 1.69

.74
56

Re-measarements on Plun Assets — Gain/ (losa)




Motes to Consalidated ﬁ;mdﬂ siatements {contineed)

Medi Assist Heabtheare Serviees Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements {continwed )
(Al amouncs gre in Indian Rupees in millions, wiless otherise stated)

k|

B. Plan asseds
Plam assets comprise the following
Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
Maraged by - Relisnce Nippon Life Insurance snd LIC Limized - 100% fianded 6,60 172
6.60 7.7
ili. Actuarial apsumpilons
The following were the principal actuarial assumptions &t the reporting date {expressed as weighted avernges).
Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March 2012 31 March 2021
Diseaunt raie 4.90% 4. 50%
Expectad return 4.50% 5.10%
Future salary growth B00% 5.00%
Monaliy LALM 2012-14 Lk LALM 201214 Uit
Rate of employes maver T 35% - 3%
iv. Sensitivity analysis
Particul As at 31 Mareh 2022 As ot 31 March 2011
> 1 Decrease Inerease Decrense
Driscount mes (1% movement) {4.60) 482 (157) LR ]
Futufe salary growth (1% movemen) 464 (4.51) 152 {3.48)
Rate of employes lamaver (1% movemsnt) (L85) 0.89 [0.75) 0.7%
The semsisivity analyses above have been determined based on & method that extrapolstes the impact on defined bemefit cblipation as a resuli of reasonsble chunges in key asssmptions occwrring af the
end of the réporting period,
v. Expecied future cash Mows
raid As a1t 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Diseounted Undisesnnted Discounted Undiscounted
1" Following year 59.99 6144 43,18 44,14
2" Following year 4813 5192 1430 36,64
3 Following yesr 744 42.20 1755 075
4" Following year 308 36.75 2312 2697
5™ Following year 24.15 29,05 19,14 2333
Thereafier 5183 TLI& 4084 55.51
¥l  Deseription of Risk Exposures:

{e}

Employes benefits (continued)

Valustione are based on certain sssumplions, which are dynamic in nafure and vary over time, As such Ciroup is caposed to various risks as follow -

a) Salary Increases- Actual salary incresses will incresse the Plan's Bability, Increase in salary incroase rate assamption in future valuations will also increase the lishiliny,
b) Investment Risk- If plan is fanded then assets linbilities mismatch and actual isvestenent refum on assets bower than the discount rate assumed at the last valustion date can impact the lisbility.

<} Discoumt Rate- Reduction in discourt rete in subsequent valustians can incresse the plan’s lisbility,
d) Martality- Actusl deaths & disability cases proving lower or highes then assumed in the vihuation can et the labilities.

&) Withdrawals- Actual withdrrwals peoving higher or kower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrwal rates a1 subsequent valuations can lmpact Plan's Hinbility,

Onher long-term employee benefits:

The Group provides for compenssted absences io ity employecs. The emplayess can carmy-forward  pertion of the unutilised scerued compensated
During the year ended 1 March 2022, the Group bas incurred an expense on compensated shsences amounting 1o Rs. (0.69) miflion [31 Mareh 2021

expense for compersated absences busis the actuarisl valuation of the present value of the obligation, using the Projected Unir Credis Method,

absences and utilise it in future service yoars.
: Re. .30 milliaa)]. The Growp determines the



Medi Assist Healtheare Services Limited
Notes o Consoliduted Mnancial statements (continued)
(Al emounts are in Indign Rupees in milfionr, unfess otherwise saned)

31  Employes stock option scheme
31 {a) 2013 plan

The Company has established Employee Stock Option Scheme 2013 (*ESOS 2013%) with effect from |

growth and success of the Company, ESOS 2013 is aperated at the discretion of the Board of directors.

These options which confer o right but not an obligation on the em

Scheme 2013 ("ESOS 2013") and the option agreement have
performance parameters.

The Company had below share based paymenst armangement under ESOS 2013 a5 an 31 March 2022

October 2013 1o enable the employees of the Company 1o participate in the foture

ployee to apply for equity shares of the Compuny once the terms and conditions set forth in the Employee Stock Option
been met. Vesting of options would be subject 1o continued employment with the Company and meeting the requisite

Partleulars Diate of grants Number of aption granted Exercise price
(in Rs)
Grani [ T=Chet=13 108 66,603
Girant It 1-Sep-15 254 407,275
Grant [ 5-Sep-18 2% 339,213
Grana [V l=Jul=21 1,301,956 256
Canditions:
Vesting condition Continued employment with the Company and fil filment of performance paremeters
Exercise period Exercise on lsting / strategic sale
Metthod of settlement Equity
Vesting period
Particulars Grant 1 Grant I1 Grant [T Grant IV
At the end of one vear [ 50% 100% 1%
Al the end of two year 50% 25% 0% 20%
Al the end of thres year 25% 5% 0% 30%
At the end of four year 25% 1% % 4%

Muodification of Employee stock option scheme

The Company has made capital restrueruring by way of right issues 1o existing sharcholder. In accordance with the "ESOS 2013°
exists. Resulling in terms of modification of the scheme, thens by additional options have been given to option grantees by the co
this has mot resulted in any Incremental share based payment expense reason being the fair value of the options immediately

Particulars Grant [ Grant IT
Revised exercise price 12,696 159,877
Additional ESOS issued 112 265
Revised ESOS in force Fri) ) 519

Reconciliation of vutstunding share options:

scheme, non-discretionary anti-dilution provisfons
mpany. Deue bo existience of non-discretionary provision
before and after the rights issue were same.

Fur the year ended 31 March 2022

Shares arising out of | Range of exercise prices Weighted average Weighied average
Pk oplions (im Rs.) exercise price (in He) Swnakiing
contractual life
Chutstanding as o | April 2021 (refer note 14(a)) 1,211,208 w11 2586 -
Add: Options granied during the vear 1,300,956 235 156 4.0
|Less: Options Iapsed during the year 172,236 - - -
Options outstanding at 31 March 2022 2,340,928 256 1546 4.00
{Exercisable optians at 31 Mareh 2022 1,211,208 256 156 4.00
For the year ended 31 Murch 2021
Shares arising out of | Runpe of exereise prices Welghted average Weighted average
Particnlrs options {In Hs.) exercise price (in Rs.) remalning
contraciual fife
Chutstanding 2= at 1 April 2020 654 32,656 10 339,213 178,954 3.00
Less: Options lapsed during the year . . % "
Less: Options exercised during the year . = " E
ns outstanding nt 31 Mareh 2021 654 32,686 ko 339,213 174,959 3.50
Exercisable options at 31 March 2021 654 32,696 1o 339,213 178,958 3.50

Valuation of stock aption

Options have been valued based on fair value method as deseribed under Ind AS 102 Share hased

of the company's shares on the grant date.

payments, using Black Sclholes valuation options pricing model, by wsing the fair value

Expenses summary of shared-based payment
For details on employee benefif expenses refer Mote 23,

Particulars Grant | Grant 11 Grant 11 Grant [V

Grant date 1-Dee-13 1-Sep-15 5-Bep-18 1-Jub-21
Share price in Rs 316,032 407,275 335,213 257

Exercise price in Rs 66,603 407,275 138,211 256

Expected vodatility 27.50% 27.50% 26.37% 33.75%
Expected life 542 4.50 257 4.00

Dividend yield % 0% 1%
Risk-free interest mie (based on povernment bonds) B.E2% 1.79% 5.24%
Fair value in Rs 274,744 153,254 8107




Medl Assist Healtheare Services Limited
Motes to Consolidated financial statements (contineed)

(AN amovnts are in Indien Rupees in millions, unless otherwive siated)

31 Emplayee stock option scheme
31 {n} 2013 plan

The Comgpany has established Employes Stock Option Scheme 2013 (*ESOS 20137) with effect from 1 Oclober 2013 to ensable the emplovess of the Company to participate in fhe fituse
growlh and success of the Company. ESOS 2013 iz operated ai the discretion of the Board of directors.

These options which confer 2 right bul not an obligation on the empleyes to apply for equity shares of the Company once the terms and conditions set forth in the Employee Siock Option
Seheme 2013 ("ESOS 2013") and the option agreement have been mel. Vesting of options would be subject to continued employment with the Company and meeting the requisite

performance paramciers.

The Company had below share based payment arrangement under ES0S 2013 as an 31 March 2022

Particulars Date of granis Mumber of option granted Exercise price
(im Rs}
Gramt | I1=0ct=13 108 6,603
CGirant 11 |-Sep-15 254 407,278
Grane 111 $-Sep-18 2% 139213
Grant IV 1-Jul-21 1,301,956 256
Conditions:
Vesting condition Continued employment with the Company ond fulfilment of performanee parameters
Exercise period Exercise on listing / strategic sale
Method of settlement Equity
Vesting period
Particulars Grant | Grang 11 Grant IT1 Grant IV
Al the end of ane vear 0% S0 10045 10
At the end of bwo year 50% 25% % 0%
Al the end of three year L 25% [1.1% ki
At the end of four year 5% e L] At

Modification of Employee stock option scheme

The Company hes made eapital restrueturing by way of right isswes o existing shareholder. In accordance with the "ESOS 2013" scheme, nom-digeretionary anti-dilwtion provisions
exists. Resulting in 1erms of modification of the scheme, there by additional options have been given to option grantecs by the company. Due to existence of non-discretionary provision
this has not resulted in any incrementsl shere based peysnent expense reason being the Fair valse of the options immediately before and after the rights issue were same.

Particulars Grant I Grant I1
Revised exercise price 32,696 199,877
Additional ESOS issued 112 265
Bevised ESQS in force 20 519
HReconciliation of outstanding share options:
For the year emded 31 March 2022
‘Weighted average
. Shares ariging out of | Range of exercise prices Welghted averape
AN aptions {in Rs.) exercise price {in Rs) resnising
P contractual life
Crutstanding as at 1 April 2021 frefer note 14(a)) 1,211,208 256 156 *
Add: Options granted during the year 1,301,956 256 256 400
Leas: Options lapsed during the year 172,136 - - -
Oiptions outstanding at 31 March 3622 2,340,928 156 156 4,00
Extreisable options at 31 March 2022 1,211,208 256 256 400
For the year ended 31 March 2021
Shares arising out of | Range of exercige prices Weighted average Weighted average

Particulars options (in Bs.) exercise price (ln Rs.) remaining

__contractual lfe
Owistanding as st | April 2020 54 32,656 m 335,213 178,959 .00
Less: Options lapsed during the year . . .
|Less: Chptions exercised during the year - < . =
Options owtstanding at 31 March 2021 654 32,606 1o 330,213 178,959 E
Exercisable aptions a1 31 March 2021 654 32,696 to 339,213 178,959 350

Valuation of stock option

Options have been valued based oo fabr value methixd a5 described under Ind AS 102 Share baged payments, using Black Scholes valuation options pricing model, by using the fair value

of the company’s shares on the grant date.

Particulars Grant | Grant 11 Girant 111 Grant [V

(Grant date 1-0et-13 I-Sep-15 5-5ep-18 1-Jul-21
Share price in Rs 36,032 407 275 339,213 257
Exercise price in Rs 258 407,275 339,213 256
Expected volaiility 27,508 2T.50% 263T% 13,755
Expected life 542 257 4.00
DHvidend yiekd 0% % 1%
Risk-free interest rie (hased on government bonds) H2% 7.80% 5345,
| Fair value in Rs 274,744 88,004 8107

Expenses summary of shared-based payment

For details on employes benefit expenses refer Mote 23,




Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited
Motes to Consolidated financlal siatements {confinued)
(AN amounts are in lndion Rupees in millions, unless otherwing siated)

31 (b) Employee stock option scheme of subsidiary:
Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited

202 plan
The Company has introdoced Employes Siock Option Scheme 2002 (“ESOS 20127) with effect Fom 30 April 2012 10 enable the employees of the Company to participate in the future
growih and suecess of the Company. ESOS 2012 is operated at the discretion of the Board.

The Company has granted to its employee 57,842 employee stock options on 30 Apeil 2012, 17,333 employee siock options on 30 Apel 2013, 28,198 employee stock options on | June
2014, 6,374 employee stock oplions on | June 2015, 13,500 employee stock options on 15 September 2015, 29.000 employee stock options on 15 July 2016 and 43,354 emplayee siock
options on | July 2017. These options which confer a right but not an obligation an the employes to apply for equity shares of the Company once the terms and conditions set forth in the
Employee Stock Option Scheme 2012 (*ESOS 2012} and the option agreement have been met. Vesting of options would be subject in continued employment with the Comparny snd
meeting the requisite performance parameters. As at the balance sheet date 86,257 options were vesied 1o the employees.

The Company had below share based payment arranpement under ES0S 2012 a5 on 31 Mareh 2002

Particulars Date of grants  Mumber of option granted Exercise price
Grant 1 30-Ape-12 45,400 144
Gram 1 3Apr12 40,124 140
Grant 11 I0-Apr-12 2318 140
Grant [V I-Ape-13 17,333 135
Grant V 1-Jun-14 28,198 GGG
Cirant V1 I-Jun-i5 6,374 1,244
Grant VI 15-Sep-15 13,500 1,244
Grant VI 15-Tul-16 20,000 1368
Cirant IX I-Jul-17 18,110 1,505
Grant X I-Jul-17 5,405 1,505
Grant X1 I-Jub-17 1434 1,505
Grrant X11 1-Mul-17 4,445 1,505
Conditions
Vesting comdition Continugd employment with the Company and fulfillment of performance parameters
Exercise perind Exercise on listing / strategic sale
Method of settlement Equity
Vesting schedule
Grant | Grant 11 Grant [T Grant IV, ¥, VI, VIL, VII1
and IX
Al the end of | vear 1% 1% 1004 15%
Al the end of 2 vear e 3% - 0%
Al the end of 3 year e 4% - 3%
At the end of 4 year 35% = . 354
Grant X Grant X1 Grant XII
Al the end of | year 35% 65% 100%
At the end of 2 year 0% 35% [
At the end of 3 year kL i1 %
At the end of 4 vear 0% ] %
Modified Vesting schedule
Grant 1 Grant 11 Girmat 111 Grant IV, V, VI, VII, VIII
and IX
Immediate 10084 100% 1004 100%
Grant X Granf XI Grant XII
Immediate 100% 100% 100%
Fulr value of options Pre and Post modification:
{Amoumnt i Rz )
Particulars Dhaste of grants Fair Value Pre Falr Vialue Post
Modification Modification
Grant 1 J0-Apr-12 2,160 2,139
Grant 1 M-Apr-12 2,180 2139
Girant (11 30-Apr-12 2,160 2139
Grant [V MH-Ape-13 2085 2,049
Grant V 1-Jun-14 1,512 1,363
Grant V1 1=Jun-15 1,295 1,103
Grant VII 15-8ep-13 1,256 1,103
Grant VITI 15-Tul-16 1,234 984
Girant X 1-Jul-17 1,174 858
Grant X 1-Jud-17 L1 B3R
Grant X1 1-Jal-17 1,056 B3R
Grant X1 1-Jal-17 10896 858




Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements (continued)
{AN amounrs are in Indian Bupess in millions, imless atherwive stated)

31 (b} Employee stock option seheme of subsidiary (continued)

Reconciliation of outstanding employee stock options:
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Paribalins Shares arising out of Runge of exercise prices Weighted average Wt@":ii:l:ﬂlﬁl
aptions {in Re.) exerclse price (in Rs.) ' &
contraciual life
Ouistanding as ai 1 April 2021 £6,257 140 - 1,505 T 1040
Add: Options granted during the year - . s
Less: Options lapsed during the year 2 . - 5
Options outstanding as at 31 Mareh 2022 86,257 140 - 1,505 09 L
Exercisable as at 31 March 2022 86,257 140 - 1,505 709 L0
For the year ended 31 March 2021
Sh ‘Welghted average
Particalars ared ariging out of | Range of exercise prices Welghted average i
Syt (i Re) waion pties. fn k) mtrmnltﬂfc
Cratstanding a3 at | Apeil 2020 E6,257 140- 1,508 709 1.00
Add: Options granted during the year . - - -
Less: Options zpsed during the year : : : Z
Options cutstanding a1 31 March 2021 £6,257 140 - 1,505 The 1.0
|E:l:m:i=bl: options at 31 March 2021 86,157 140- 1,505 709 106 |

Expenses summary of shared-based payment
For details on employes benefit expenses refer Note 23,

(This space is inteniomally left blank)
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Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited
Motes 1o Consolidated financial statements {continued)
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise shated)

33 Capital management

(a)

(k)

The Group palicy is to maintain a strong capital base o as 1o maintain mvestor, creditor and market confidence and 10 sustain future development of the business. The Capital
Management policy focusses to maintain an optimal structure that balances growth and maximizes sharcholder value,

The Group's adjusted net debt to equity ratio were as follows,

As at Asal
Farticulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Total borrowings - -
Less : Cash and cash squivalent {145.95) {633.89)
Adjusted net debt (restricted to Nil) i T
Total equity (Including NCI) 3,392.86 292550

Adjusted net debt to adjosted equity ratio - <

The Group has Nil bormrowing as at 31 March 2022,

Segment reporting

Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” (“Ind AS 108") establishes standards for the wiy that business enterpriscs reporting information about the operating segment and related
disclosure made by the Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM).

The Group is engaged in the business of Health Benefits Administration and Health Management Servioes, The CODM reviews these activities under the context of Ind AS
108 Operating Segment as one single primary segment to evaluate the overall performance assessment of entity's operating segment.

Information about major customers (external customers):
The following is the trunsactions by the Group with external customers individually contributing 10 per cent or more of the Group's revenue from operations:

(i} For the year ended 31 March 2022, revenue from operations of two customers of the Group represented approximately 42% and 15%, of the Group's revenue from
operations.

{ii) For the year ended 31 March 2021, revenue from operstions of two customers of the Group represented approximately 36% and 17%, of the Group's revenue from
Operations.

{This space is fmtentionally lefi blank)
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Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements (continued)
(ii) Discontinued Operations - Pre-policy checkup services

A During the Financial year 2021-22, the Group has decided to discontinue the business operations pertaining to pre-policy checkup services. The Group has disclose the
discontinuation of pre-policy checkup business as discontinued operations as per the requirement of Ind AS 105 ' Non current asset held for sale and Discontinued
operation’. The Group has re-represented the comparative information due to the discontinued operations.

N— For the year ended For the year ended
T 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Revenue
Revenue from operations 25.05 29.05
Total income 25.05 29.05
Expenses
Other expenses 23.83 33.03
Total expenses 23.83 33.03
Profit/ (Loss) before tax from a discontinued operation 1.22 (3.98)
Tax Credit
Related to pre-tax profit/(loss) (0.31) 1.00
(0.31) 1.00
Profit/ (Loss) after tax from a discontinued operation 0.91 (2.98)
B Net cash flows attributable to the discontinued operations
Particul Nt For the year ended For the year ended
s i 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Net cash generated/ (used in) from operating activities (A) 11.66 (55.63)
Net cash generated/ used in investing activities (B) - -
Net cash generated/ used in financing activities (C) - -
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 11.66 (55.63)

(This space is intentionally left blank)




Medl Assist Healtheare Services Limited
Motes to Consolidated financial siatements (continued)
(All amowts are o Indian Rupees in millions, unfess otherwise stated)

38 Expenditure incurred in foreign currency

For the year ended For the year ended

Partieulars
- 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Fees for technical services 2.86 1.02
39 Corporate Soctal Responsibility (" CSR™)
Where the company covered under section 135 of the 2003 Act, the following shall be disclosed with regard to CSR activities:-
Particulars For the year ended| For the vear ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

1070 12,49

10,70 13.08
(c} shortfal] at the end of the year - (0.59)
() total of previous vears shonfall - -
(e) reason for shortfall " |
(f) noture of CSE. activities The ares for CSR| The aren for SR

enhancemeni
employmen? enhanci
vocational skilks by wi
of providing training i
1 wide amay
functional  arcas
persoms  at  variou

|ectivities is livelihood|activities s livelihood

enhancement and
employment  enhanci
vocational skills by way o

providing truining in =
wide sray of functional
areas [0 persons al varows
locations of the Company

locations  of across [ndia.
Company across India.

details of related party transactions®
(h) where a provision is made with respect to a lisbility incurred by entering into & contractunl] =
obligation, the movements in the provision during the year should be shown separaicly,

40 Relnted party disclosures

In complinnce with Ind AS 24 - “Related Party Disclosures™, as notified under Rule 3 of the Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian

Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 the required disclosures are given below:

(A) Names of the related parties and description of relationship

{i). Subsidiary

(i), Key management personnel

(ifi). Entity hiving significant influence

{iv). Entities under common control

{v), Emtities having common director

Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited

Dr. Vikram Jit Singh Chhatwal - Chairman cum Whole Time Directar w.e.f 151 March 2021

Satish Gidugu -Whole Time Director and CEQ w.e.f. 15t March 2021
Vishal Vijay Gupta - Director

Senjay Kalra - Independent Director - Retired w.ef. 1 1th March 2021
Himani Al Kapadia- Indépendent Director w.e.f 15th March 2021
Gaurav Sharma - Nominee Director

Gopalan Srinivasan - Independent Director w.ef. 15th March 2021
Anil Chanana - Independent Director w.e.f, 15th March 2021

D, Ritu Niraj Anand - Independent Director w.e.f, | 5th March 2021
Anznda Mukerji - Independent Divestor w.e.f, 15th March 2021
Mathew George - Chiefl Financial Officer w.e.f 3rd Manch 2021
Megha Matoo - Chief Compliance Officer and Company Secretary w.e.f 5th March 2021

Medimatier Health Management Private Limited
Phasnrz Technobogies Private Limdted
Mandala Wellness Private Limited (MWPL?)
= (MWPL Merged with Phasorz Technologies Privage Limited woef |

Buddhimed Technologies Private Limited

{This space is intentionally leff blank)
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Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limbted

Motes to Consalidated financial statements (continged)

(Al amigunis are in Indian Rupees i millions, wiless otherwize siated)
40 Related party disclosures (continued)

(B} Summary of transactions with the above relnted parties are as follows ;

For the vear ended

Particulars MNotes 31 March 2022

For the vear ended
31 March 2021

Consultancy fees paid to
Medimatter Health Management Private Limited #
Buddhimed Technologies Private Limited -

Support service income from
Phasorz Technologies Private Limited 39.90
= (MWPL Merged with Phasorz Technologies Private Limited w.e.f 1 April 2022)

Health Management services from
Phagorz Technologies Private Limited *
- (MWPL Merged with Phasorz Technologies Private Limited w.e.f 1 Apnl 2022)

Support service fee paid to
Phasorz Technologies Private Limited {a) 2386
= (MWPL Merged with Phasorz Technologses Private Limited w.e.f 1 April 2022)

Interest on debentures
Medimatter Health Management Private Limited -

Conversion of Redeemable preference shares to Series B CCPS
Medimaiter Health Management Private Limited -

Conversion of Series B CCPS o equity shares
Medimatter Health Management Private Limited x

Advance received
Phasorz Technologies Private Limited =
- (MWPL Merged with Phasorz Technologies Private Limited w.e [ 1 April 2022)

Reimbursement of cxpenses to
Phasorz Technologics Private Limited {8} 153,12
- {MWPL Merged with Phasorz Technologies Private Limited w.e.f 1 Apri] 2022)

Health sereenings

Accrued Expenses
Phasorz Technologhes Private Limited (a) -
- (MWPL Merged with Phasorr Technologies Private Limited w.oe.f 1 April 2022)

Reimbursement of charges from

Phasorz Technologies Private Limited

- {(MWPL Merged with Phasorz Technologies Private Limited wee f 1 April 2022)
Facilities and other expenses 12.82
Expenses cross charge (k) -

Repayvment of Non Convertible Debenture
Medimatter Health Manapement Private Limited -

Business promotion expense (Accrued)
Phasorz Technologies Private Limited 24.50
= (MWPL Merged with Phasorz Technologies Private Limited we. £ | April 2022)

Interest income
Phesore Technologies Private Limited e
= (MWPL Merged with Phasorz Technologies Private Limited woe.f 1 April 2022)

Reimbursement of expense io Director 024

Compensation of key management personnel
i} Shori term employee benefits {c) 42.04
i) Director sitting fees 5.18
i) Commibssion 1o independent directors 1.50

0.50
2.00

58.60

3674

47.38

023

52300

523,00

61.60

LB6.28

529

4,30
312

2.00

33.45

.52

1742
0.83

(g} These transaction arc carmried oul with MWPL by the subsidiary Company through the Holding Company, who acted on behall of MWPL

{b) The expenses reflected in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss are net of those cross charged 1o the Mandala Wellness Privaie Limited and that the managemeni is

confident of recovering the entire other receivable balance incleding the ¢ross charge amount,
[n the opinicn of the management, sll transactions were made on pormal commereial (erms and conditions and a1 arm's length price.

() Ms the linbility for gratuity and compensated absence is provided on an ectuarial basis for the Group s a whole, the amount pertaining to Director is not ascertainable and,

therefore not included sbove,

(This space is inventionally left blank}




Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited
Motes to Consolidated financial statemenis (continued)
{AN ampunis are in Indian Rupees in milllons, wnless otherwise stated)

40 Related party disclosures (continued)

{C) The Group has the following amount due from/ to related parties

41

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 1021
Amount receivable towards rendering of services
() Trade receivables
Phasorz Technologies Privale Limited 101.81 4842
= (MWPL Merged with Phasorz Technologics Privare Limited woe.l | April 2022)
(i} Unbilled reccivables
Phasorz Technologies Privale Limited 30,00 5243
- (MWPL Merged with Phasorz Technologies Private Limited w.e.f | April 2022)
Amiunt payable towards rendering of services (Trade payables)
Phasorz Technologies Private Limited 64.31 50.70
= (MWTPL Merged with Phasorz Technologies Private Limited w.e.f | April 2022)
Orther payables
Phasorz Technologies Private Limited 37.50 BG4
= {(MWPL Merged with Phasorz Technologies Private Limited w.e.f | April 2022)
Accrued expenses (Met of advance)
Phasorz Technologies Private Limited 14,50
= (MWPL Merged with Plasorz Technologies Private Limited w.e.f | April 2022)
Oiher receivables
Phasorz Technologies Private Limited 33.38 14322
= (MWPL Merged with Phasorz Technologies Private Limited wef | April 2022)
Advance balance
Phasorz Technologhes Private Limited - 61.60
- (MWPL Merged with Phasorz Technolopies Private Limited w.e.f 1 April 2022)
Other financial labilities
Emplayes benefits payable 14.45 670
Reconciliation of movements of lisbilities to cash flows arising (rom financing activitkes
(Rs in millions)
e As at Non-cash changes As at
31 March 2021  Falr value changes R’ep.u}'&l 11 March 2022
Noa-current financial linbilities - Borrowings . - =
(B in midijons)
Particulars As at MNon-cash changes As at
31 March 2020 Fair value changes Hepayment 31 March 2021
Mos-current financial liabilities - Borrowings 1.77 0.23 [2.00} -

{This space is intentlonally left blank)




Medi Assist Healtheare Services Limited
MNotes to Consolidated financinl statements (continped)
(Al amonnts are in fndian Rupees in millions, wiless otherwise siated)

42 Micro, small and medinm enterprise
The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Entesprises has fssued an office memorandum dated 26 Avgust 2008 which recommends that the Micro and $mall Enterprises
should mention in their comespondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Mumber as allocated after filing of the Memorandum in aceordance with the *“Micro,
Smell and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("the Act’). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable 1o such enterprises as at 31 March 2022 gad
31 March 2021 has been made in the consolidated financial stalements based on information received and available with the Group. Further in view of the Management, the
impact of interest, if any, that may be paysble in sccordance with the provisions of the Act is not expecied 1o be materizl. The Group have following dues 1o micro and small
enterprises as o1 31 March 2022,

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid 1o any supplier ot the end of each sccounting yean:

As at As at
Farticulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2071

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier et the end of cach pccounting vear;
Principal 32,32 31,39

Interest 1.20 011

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development .
Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each nccounting
year,

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but bevond the - -
appoinied day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006,

The amount of intezest accrued and remaining unpaid al the end of each accounting year. 1.20 0.11

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succesding years, until such date when the interest . -
does above are sotunlly paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,

43 The Group does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there are any material foresesable losses.

44 Non-current assets held for sale

Particulars Notes As nt
31 March 2021

Other intangible assets

[HX platform * ] 12.44
12.44

* The Board mecting held on 7 December 2020, the Booard of Directors of the Group granted in-principle approval for sale of [HX platform (included under other intangible
assets) and consequently, as per the requirements of Ind AS 105 - Non Current Assets held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, the Group has classified the assets as at 31
March 2021 as Non-current assets classified as held for sale. The Managemen! is reasonably certain the fair value less cost to sale will be higher than the camying value of the
non-cirrent asset held for sale.

45 Addithnal Regulatory Information required under Schedule 111

(I} Details of benami property held
Mo procecdings have been initisted on or are pending against the Group for holding benami property under the Benami Transaciions (Prehibition) Act, 198 {45 of 1958) and

Rules made thereunder,

(i) Borrowing secured against corrent asieis
The Group has no borrowings from financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets,

(i) Wilful defaulter
The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any hank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

{iv) Relationship with struck off companies
The Group has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companics Act, 1956

{v) Compliance with number of layers of companies
The growp has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clzuse (B7) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies {Restriction on number of Layers) Rubes, 2017,

(vi) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The Group has not entered info any approved scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact in current of prévious financial year,
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Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements (continued)
(Al emounts are in fodian Bupers in millions, wiess otherwise siated)

45 Additional Regulatory Information required under Scheduale 111 (eontinued)

i¥il} Utilisation of berrowed funds and share premiom
I The Group has not advanced or loaned or invesied funds 10 any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shail:

{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in cther persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantes, security or the like 1o or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

Il The Group has not received any fund from asy personts) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded m writing or
otherwise] that the Group shall:

(8) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons of entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Uhimate Beneficiaries) or
(b} provide any guarantes, security or the like on behalf of the uhimate beneficiarics

(vild Undisclosed income
There is no income surrendered of disclosed as mcome during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Ineome Tax Act, 1961, thut has not been recorded in
the books of sccount.

{ix) Details of crypéo currency or virtual currency
The Group has not traded or invested in erypdo currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

(%} Valustion of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property
The Group has not revalued its propesty, plant and equipment {including right-of-use asseiz) or intangible sssets or both during the current or previous year.

{xd) The Group does not have any chasges of salisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

46 The COVID-19 pandemic has significamtly impacied global economies, resulting in workforce and travel restrictions, supply chain and production disruptions and reduced
demand and spending across many sectors, The Group hes eontinued 10 adapt measures to curh the spread of infection in arder to protect the healih of its employees and ensure
business continuity with minimal disruption, The Group has considered internal and external information while finalizing various estimates in relation to its financial statement
captions upto the date of appeoval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors. The Group will contimee to closely monitor any material changes to fiture economic
canditions.

47 Exceptional item
The Group has incurred Rs,101.28 million (Current year — Rs. 75,27 million; Previous year - Rs.26.01 million) towards [PO expenses. During the year, cenain selling shure
holders haus agreed 1o reimburse these expenses in proportion 1o their shares offered for sale at the time of the IO in previous year and to this extent resahation is passed in the
Board meeting. Accordingly Rs.26.01 million expenses has been credited to the Statement of profit of loss (85 an exceptional flem) along with current year expenditure of
R, 75.27 mil and disclosed as recoverable from selling shareholders (Refer note 12{e)).

48 Events after the reporting date
The Group evaluated all events or transactions that occurred after the balance sheel dale through, the dete at which the financinl statements were available to be issued and
determined that there are no other items 1o disclose except those already disclosed in the financiul in earlier notes,

49 The Code on Soclal Security 2020
The Code on Social Security 2020 (*the Code’) relating to employes benefits, during the employment and post-employment, has received Presidentisl assent on Seplember 28,
2020, The Code has been published i the Gazette of India. Furiher, the Ministry of Labour and Employment has released drafl rules for the Code on Movember 13, 2020,
However, the effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and rules for quantifying the financial impact are also not ved rssued.
The Group will assess the impact of the Code and will give appropriate impact in the financial siatements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective and the related

rules (o desermine the financial impact are published,
S0 Previous year ligures have been regrouped! reclassified to confimm presentation as per Ind AS and as required by Schedule I of the Act.

The notes referred fo gbove form an integral part of these consolidated financial siatements,
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